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A BRIEF HISTORY

In the beginning.

Members of the Tommeginer aboriginal tribe lived on the Fossil Bluff coastline until early 1841. These people did not move far
inland as the area was heavily timbered so their diet consisted mainly of seafood. The rock fish traps they used remain evident
on the Fossil Bluff tidal foreshore today.

In 1798 George Bass and Matthew Flinders sailed their sloop "Norfolk" through Bass Strait, to discover that Van Diemen's
Land (later Tasmania) was not connected to New Holland (later Australia) and on this voyage they named the large
promontory (170 metres) Table Gape, which has now become the local landmark.

The Cape had huge stringy-bark eucalyptus gum trees with base girths of up to 12 metres which have since been stripped and
the beautiful red loam uncovered has been most suitable for the growing of potatoes, peas, onions and corn and the raising of
sheep and cattle and more recently the cultivation of poppies, pyrethrum and tulips.

Henry Heller surveyed the area in 1827 and named the Inglis River after a Van Diemen's Land Company Director, John Inglis.
This company was then a large landholder in the north-west corner of Tasmania.

In 1853 the first of several timber mills was constructed and trade with Victorian ports became buoyant during the Victorian
gold rush and the area provided much needed timber and produce, exported from Wynyard on the Inglis River and Port
Maldon on the Cam River.

In 1971, James "Philosopher" Smith discovered the Mount Bischoff ore body, some 50 kilometres south of Wynyard, where, by
1877, the mining town of Waratah had become established and it prospered from the riches of the largest tin mine in the
southern hemisphere until the mine's closure in 1947.

In 1993, the municipalities of Waratah and Wynyard were merged into the Waratah-Wynyard Council municipal area covering
3,532 square kilometres.
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WARATAH-WYNYARD COUNCIL STRATEGIC PLAN 2009-2014

OUR COUNCIL VISION

Waratah-Wynyard municipality will continue to be a thriving and prosperous municipality, with opportunities for all.

OUR COUNCIL MISSION

Waratah-Wynyard Council will work to create an environment where its people can prosper and take advantage of the
municipality's unique advantages to the benefit of the community.

OUR COUNCIL VALUES

Good Governance

Fairness and Responsiveness

Service Exceiience

Continuous improvement

Communication and Engagement

Environmentai Sustainabiiity

Leadership

We will have open, accessible and accountable governance in touch with the
existing and changing needs of our community.

We will ensure that all people are treated with dignity, respect and fairness.
Our staff is critical to the achievement of our goals and we are committed to
their continuing development.

We are here to serve our community and will strive to meet its needs through
the provision of service excellence based on a continuous improvement
approach.

We will continually look for ways to improve our services to enhance
community benefit.

We will deliver accurate, timely and relevant information involving the open
exchange of ideas and information with the community.

We aspire to become environmentally sustainable and maximise opportunities
for all people and future generations to enjoy social and physical well-being.

We will effectively advocate the needs and aspirations of the community.
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A WORD FROM THE MAYOR

It is said that the only constant is change.

As part of revising our Strategic Plan in 2009, we examined the changes that had occurred between the 1996 Census and the
Census of 2006.

We discovered we now have almost 17% of our residents over the age of 65 years and that the most common type of
household remains to be families with children (39%). The Census data also revealed that over this ten year period there had
been:-

^ A 27% increase in the proportion of the population over 65;

^ A reduction of 10% in number of families' with children residing in the municipality;

^ An increase of 19% in single person households;

^ An increase of 17% in the number of families without children in the household.

The research reinforced that the nature and composition of our population is changing. It highlighted to us the ongoing nature
of change, and the need to be both conscious of such and be able to be in position to prepare for the opportunities and
challenges change brings.

The municipality is an attractive and productive place to live and work. Determining however how land can be used has
created conflict between some land users and Council. We need to work together to make changes that provide a robust and
clear planning framework that takes local conditions into account. The Council continues to participate in the Cradle Coast
Regional Planning Initiative to this end; I sincerely hope this process will make a positive contribution to reduce these conflicts
into the future.

Change has occurred in the provision of water & sewerage services in the state. The creation of the regional corporation
Cradle Mountain Water has impacted directly on the Councils financial bottom line with the transfer of assets (and revenues)
from the Council effective 1 July 2009.

There has certainly been some start up issues with the new arrangements and I will continue to press for better outcomes for
our Council and the community.
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Change also occurred at the Local Government Election conducted in October 2009. Twelve candidates contested for
councillor positions and four persons contested the Deputy Mayor role with almost 60% of eligible electors voting. I welcome
Councillors Darren Fairbrother and Clayton Hawkins to the team and wish to acknowledge the contributions made by former
Councillors David Moore and Clay Walsh.

Change is also evident with the continued growth of the 'Colours of Wynyard' program, where we engaged a dedicated
coordinator to assist in the running of these events. I am confident that subtle changes will continue to occur that will make
these events an even more important date on the coastal calendar.

Finally, after much effort by a number of individuals, we now see changes occurring at the Table Cape Lighthouse. This was a
complex project to organise, with improvements to the site and to the building itself, required for the conduct of tours to
commence.

Similarly, the Wynyard waterfront refurbishment represents another project with much complexity. We were fortunate to
secure $1.5M funding from the State Government for this purpose in December 2009, with public consultation commencing on
Australia Day 2010.

I and no doubt the whole community look forward to seeing the construction changes in the new year.

In May, the Council considered the progress of the resource sharing arrangements and ultimately determined to extend the
agreement until 2013. I commend the General Manager, Greg Winton, together with his staff for their enthusiastic pursuit of
the resource sharing decision by the Council. I remain convinced that establishing alliances, whether they be at a local,
regional or indeed state-wide level, strengthens our ability to respond in a changing world.

In closing, I wish to thank my fellow Councillors for their commitment to the community; I look forward to working together so
that we can celebrate the successes the next year will bring.

Cr Kevin Hyland
MAYOR
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MAYOR AND COUNCILLORS (The Council)

The Council is responsible for representing the Waratah-Wynyard community and for planning, development and management
of the municipal area. It is expected to provide leadership, good local governance and act as a strong advocate for the
Waratah-Wynyard community within the legislative framework established for local government in Tasmania.

The Council comprises ten (10) elected Councillors each of whom is elected for a four (4) year term. Elections are conducted
by postal ballot every second year to elect five Councillors. The Mayor and Deputy Mayor are elected biennially by popular
vote. The last Council election was held in October 2009.

Mayor Kevin Hyland
Mayor Kevin Hyland was first elected to Waratah-Wynyard Council in April 1999 and elected Mayor in October 2005. He is
semi-retired and is involved in a number of community organisations, being a member and Past President of the Wynyard
Lions Club, Past President of the Yolla Football Club and a Past President of the North West Bird Club, a position he held for
13 years.
Kevin is also a member of the Bloomin' Tulips! Festival Committee and is a Council Representative on the Local Government
Association General Management Committee, Cradle Coast Authority, SES Local Unit Liaison Representative, Waratah
Tourism and Promotion Committee, Wynyard Wharf Special Committee and the Waratah Rural Transaction Centre
Management Special Committee. His recreational interests including fishing and keeping/breeding Australian native and exotic
finches and parrots.

Deputy Mayor Robby Walsh
Deputy Mayor Robby Walsh was born, raised and has lived in the Wynyard area all his life. He and his wife Lyn have 4 grown
children. Robby, now retired, was formerly employed by Forestry Tasmania for 24 years. He has also worked for the Justice
Department of Community Corrections for 3 years. He is a keen poultry fancier and his other recreational interests include
tractor restoration and tractor pulling competition.

Councillor Gary Bramich
Cr Gary Bramich joined Waratah-Wynyard Council as a result of the 1999 municipal election. Cr. Bramich is a semi-retired
transport contractor.

He currently represents Council on the Wynyard Community Centre Special Committee.

Councillor Colleen Dibley
Cr Colleen Dibley was elected to Council in May 2008 to fill a casual vacancy. It is her second stint on the Waratah-Wynyard
Council.

Her specific interests are land-use planning, community development and tourism. A librarian by profession, but a farmer at
heart. Colleen and husband Daryl have established a commercial chestnut orchard at Preolenna. Colleen lists her hobbies as
observing the natural environment, reading and studying the political landscape of the state.
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Councillor Mary Dunlam
Or Mary Duniam was elected to Waratah-Wynyard Council in October 2005. Currentiy Chair of the Colours of Wynyard
Special Committee of Council Mary is also a member of the Resource Sharing Committee (Waratah-Wynyard/Circular Head
Counciis): Waratah-Wynyard Tourism Advisory Group, and Somerset Indoor Sports & Recreation Committee. She has
actively worked for the Waratah Community with the recent closure of its school, as well as initiating the Somerset Village
Group. She is a mentor in the Co-Pilot Program at Wynyard High Schooi, caring deeply about the future wellbeing of our
youth. Cr Duniam has been a member of several community organisations over many years, is currently a Board Member of
MST, a member of the Rotary Club of Somerset, Australian Local Government Women's Association, and Business &
Professionai Women. She has B.AdVocEd Hons, Dip IT (Project Management), Dip Business (Administration), and is
currently undertaking a Graduate Certificate of Business with UTAS. Interests include reading, classical music, walking, and
travelling.

Councillor Alwyn Friedersdorff
Cr Alwyn Friedersdorff was elected to Waratah-Wynyard Council in October 2002 and currently represents Council on the
Wynyard Sports Centre Special Committee, the Wynyard Child Care Centre Management Committee and the Colours of
Wynyard Special Committee. She has been an active member of the community as a voiunteer with the HACC Community
Bus Service, as a mentor for students in the Co-Pilots scheme and for the Wynyard A & P Society. Cr. Friedersdorff has been
employed by the St Vincent de Paul Society for 21 years as a Sociai Trainer for young people with intellectual disability and
as a manager of a Community Housing complex for them. She has a Graduate Certificate in Housing Management and Policy
and is a member of the Austraiasian Housing Institute. In her spare time Cr Friedersdorff enjoys reading, walking, traveiiing or
experiencing something new.

Councillor Clayton J Hawkins
Cr Clayton Hawkins was elected in 2009 and is a 6th generation local, aged 34, with a young family. He spent six years in
local government employment working in the areas of community, cuitural and recreation deveiopment and is well known
locally as a professional musician. He is a Lecturer with the Institute for Regional Development at the University of Tasmania.
He holds a Master of Business Administration as well as tertiary qualifications in recreation planning and arts management
and is currentiy undertaking a PhD focussed on the future impacts of the changing social networking and leisure participation
environment on local government planning and resourcing. He currently sits on Arts Tasmania's Assistance to Organisations
Panei and is advisor to the State Government on contemporary music. He is an avid sports and iive entertainment fan and
has a strong passion for creating sustainable communities and strengthening pathways into, between and out of educationai
settings. Cr Hawkins and his wife (Cherie) were chosen to carry the 2006 Commonwealth Games Baton for service to young
people in the areas of music and sport. He was also awarded Arts Tasmania's 2006 Outstanding Contribution to Original
Music Award and the Local Government Manager's Association (Tasmania) 2005 Aspiring Young Manager of the Year. He is
the co-creator of the nationai award-winning Who's DES Tonight? Designated Driver program and is an Ambassador for
Recording Artists, Actors and Athletes Against Drink Driving.
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Councillor Darren Falrbrother

Cr Darren Fairbrother was re-elected to the Council in October 2009 for a four year term. Or Falrbrother previously held the
position of Councillor from 1996 to 2008 also serving as Deputy Mayor from 2006 to 2008.

Councillor Vaughan Pendlebury
Cr Vaughan Pendlebury joined Waratah-Wynyard Council following the 2007 election. Cr Pendlebury is a part-owner/operator
of the Wharf Hotel at Wynyard, an active member of the Wynyard Rotary Club and a member of the Bloomin' Tulips Festival
Committee. A strong believer in the importance of the tourism industry, not just to Wynyard but to the whole of the State, Cr
Pendlebury is committed to growing his business, which currently provides employment for 25 local people. Cr Pendlebury is
a strong family man, who believes Wynyard provides a wonderful environment for his two primary school-aged sons.

Councillor Francis Ransloy 0AM
Cr Francis Ransley 0AM was first elected to Waratah-Wynyard Council in March 1994 and re-elected in October 2002 after a
two-year break. Prior to this he held a position of Warden on the Burnie Port Authority for 7 years. A retired Electronics
Engineer, Cr. Ransley is a Past President of the Wynyard Rotary Club and Past National President of the Veteran Car Club of
Australia and the Australian Powerboat Association. As a powerboat driver he still holds the Tasmanian and Australian speed
records he set in 1983. His present interests include the restoration of veteran cars and his collection of these vehicles is one
of the finest in Australia. In June 1999 Cr Ransley was awarded the Medal of the Order of Australia for service to the
preservation of vintage and veteran cars, to Local Government, to power boat racing as a competitor and administrator and to
the community. In a community interest gesture, Cr. Ransley and his wife Elayne have formally committed this extremely
valuable vehicle collection to the Waratah-Wynyard Council free of cost for a 20 year term, to form the basis of the 'Wonders
of Wynyard" Exhibition Centre display.
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Councillor David Moore

Or David Moore was an elected member of Wynyard Council between March 1985 and January 1993, including a term in the
office of Treasurer. He was elected to Waratah-Wynyard Council in October, 2000 and represents Council on the Bush Watch
Western District Committee, Somerset Indoor Recreation Centre Special Committee, and the Frenchs Road Nature Reserve
Special Committee. Now retired, Cr. Moore's career included experience as an Industrial Chemist and a self employed
Service Station and Garden Centre Operator. Cr. Moore spent 8 years on the Board of Management Burnie TAPE College
and is a Past President of the Tasmanian Nurseryman's Association and long-term member of the Wynyard Garden Club. His
service club experience includes membership of Wynyard and Emu Bay Apex Clubs, Charter President of the Rotary Club of
Somerset 1980 and the award of Paul Harris Fellow. Cr. Moore was also President and Secretary of Somerset Promotions
Group, Chairman of Somerset Traders and inaugural Area Coordinator of Cam-Somerset Neighbourhood Watch for 6 years.
He was also Founder-Chairman of the Wynyard Tourism Association, a member of the inaugural committee of the Wynyard
Tulip Festival and Chairman of the rejuvenated Wynyard Chamber of Commerce. A Justice of the Peace for 20 years and
Bench Justice, Cr. Moore lists as his interests - family (3 sons, 4 grandchildren), Tasmania, bushwalking, travel, food and
wine, gardening and politics. * Retired from Council October 2009

Councillor Clay Walsh
Cr Clay Walsh was raised in Waratah before moving to Wynyard with his wife Rebecca. Employed in the mining industry, Cr
Walsh has been involved with some small community organisations in Waratah, having served on the Committee of the
Mount Vista Golf Club and for 2 years on the Waratah Primary School Committee. He has also been a member the Somerset
Football Club Committee and remains an active member of that club. * Retired from Council October 2009
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Councillor's Attendance at Meetings 2009/2010

Ordinary Meetings
2009/2010

Special Meetings
2009/2010

Workshops
2009/2010

Mayor Kevin Hyland 12 1 15

Cr Robert Walsh 11 11

Cr Gary Bramich 11 1 16

Cr Colleen Dibley 12 1 16

Cr Mary Duniam 11 1 15

Cr Alwyn Friedersdorff 12 14

Cr David Moore 2 1 4

Cr Vaughan Pendlebury 10 12

Cr Francis Ransley GAM 11 1 15

Cr Clay Walsh 1 2

Cr Clayton Hawkins 7 10

Cr Darren Fairbrother 8 10
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General Manager's Message

The Mayor mentioned in his introduction that change is the only constant; I certainly agree with his sentiments.

In December, following the Local Government Elections, the Council adopted a revised Strategic Plan for the years 2009 to
2014. The key focus areas agreed upon were:-

^  Economic prosperity addition to the wealth and diversity economy;
^ Our Community enhancement of the social and culture well being of our community;
^  Environment and sustainable management of our built and natural environment;
^ Civic leadership and governance and well manage Council that serves the municipality with integrity and has a
strong voice in the region.

With this in mind, changes to the organisational structure occurred for the purpose of strengthening the capability to respond to
demands for services and activities on behalf of the community.

The resource sharing arrangement with our western neighbours has allowed changes to the organisational structure to
facilitate this. The Executive Manager Engineering Services role became shared, supported by a Manager of Engineering and
Projects, again in a shared arrangement. The shared position of Executive Manager Business Strategy was also established.
The Business Strategy Unit will allow a greater emphasis on the preliminary investigation and design of a number of key
actions and projects aligned with the Council's Strategic Plan. A number of other alterations also occurred to other roles.
Further details of these changes, together with others proposed for the 2010/11 financial year are contained in later pages in
this Annual Report.

What I've learnt from this process is that resource sharing is a journey, rather than an outcome in itself. The resource sharing
process encourages a broadening of boundaries, a broadening of thinking - questioning how the best value outcome can be
delivered.

Such arrangements have allowed us to advance the preparation of mature asset management planning, introduce improved
business risk practices and generally better position the organisation to respond to our changing operating environment.

Albert Einstein is quoted with once saying - Everything that can be counted does not necessaniy count; everything that counts
cannot necessarily be counted. I've learnt that many of the benefits can be difficult to quantify in tangible terms. An
independent cost benefit analysis will be commissioned, subject to the approval by each Council, in an attempt to further
document and quantify some of these benefits.
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I remain convinced that the true measure of success will be cultural change.

I encourage all to peruse the contents of this Annual Report and reflect on the diverse activities of the Council. These
programs will continue to be delivered and further improvements and efficiencies are core goals of the organisation.

In closing, I wish to acknowledge the contribution of elected members and extend my sincere appreciation to all members of
staff who continue to focus on the delivery on best value outcomes for the community

Greg Winton
GENERAL MANAGER
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Finance and Performance Statistics 2009/2010

Budget Comparison

Income Additional Less Than

$ $

Rates 90,025

User Charges 26,356

Interest 137,012

Reimbursements 386,012

Government Grants 769,369

Other 15,454

Expenses Less Than Additional

$ $

Employee Costs 363,215

Materials and Contracts 519,263

Depreciation 65,565

Net loss / gain on disposal of Non-Current Assets 456,072

State Levies 88,431

Borrowing Costs 5,325

Remissions and Discounts 31,574

Other 8,989

Donated / Recognition of Assets 15,000

Value of Investment (Cradle Mountain Water) 7,100,352

Sub-Total 1,588767 8,489,247

Negative Variation 6,900,480

Total $8,489,247 8,489,247
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Financial Indicator Comparisons 2009/10 2008/09 2008/09

Current Ratio
Current Assets

Current Liabilities
3:00:1 2:30:1 2:30:1

Quick Asset Ratio
Cash + Liauid Debtors

Current Liabilities
2:69:1 1:99:1 1:87:1

Rate Coverage Ratio
Rate Revenue

Operating Revenue
51.48% 54.40% 60.30%

Outstanding Rate Debtors
Rate Debtors

Rate Revenues
1.10% 0.50% 0.72%

Expenditure per Capita
Ooeratina Expenditure

Population (14,117)
$1,006.17 $1,287.98 $1,240.46

Grant Coverage Ratio
Grant Revenue

Operating Revenue
29.66% 25.10% 19.60%
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The following table 'Finance at a Glance' provides comparisons of this year's results with the previous years:

2009/10

$

2008/09

$

Increase/

Decrease

Operational Income 14,208,936 18,381,191 (4,172,255)

Operational Expenditure 14,204,033 17,274,420 (3,070,387)

Net Increase from Ordinary Activities (Profit) 4,903 1,106,771 (1,101,868)

Rate Revenue 7,314,073 9,993,766 (2,679,693)

Government Grants 4,214,097 4,611,624 (397,527)

User Charges 1,856,244 2,923,695 (1,067,451)

Interest Income 354,307 480,933 (126,626)

Employee Costs 4,642,099 4,293,373 348,726

Borrowing Costs 27,570 193,197 (165,627)

Remissions and Discounts 589,296 799,833 (210,537)

Cash on Hand (incl. Investments) 5,823,177 5,586,453 236,724

Receivables (current) 352,976 425,364 (72,388)

Payables 1,072,232 1,545,531 (473,299)

Outstanding Loans 400,878 3,519,208 (3,118,330)

Provisions 1,451,553 1,166,476 285,077
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Capital Works Project Summary

The summary below outlines the performance status for Council's budgeted capital works projects for the 2009/2010 financial
year.

Budgeted Projects completed 86
Budgeted Projects still in progress at 30 June 2010 0
Budgeted Projects deferred 3
Budgeted Projects not proceeded with 9

Legend

Completed ® In Progress ® Deferred Not Proceeded with ®

PROJECT

Governance

Manage Strategic Acquisitions Fund and replacement of motor vehicles

Replacement Chairs for Council Chamber

Sisters Beach - Water Tanks for Council Subdivision

New Commercial Oven

Corporate Services

Shelving for Records Storage at Depot

Waratah Council Office - Electrical Upgrade Kitchen

Waratah Council Office - Window Replacement

Foyer - Customer Service Area - Carpet

Office Furniture

Financial Services

Waratah Shelving / Display Area

STATUS

a

9

a

9

Part of office redevelopment if funds remain

Waratah-Wynyard Council Annual Report 2009-2010—Page 18



Financial Services cont

Interplan Software - Stage 2

Ptiotocopier - Depot

Replace Printer - WS

Cadastre Correction Stage 1 (Wynyard)

Replace Plotter

BIS Software

Community Services

Portable Marquees

Children and Youth Services

Links Child Care Centre - Replace Guttering and Down Pipes

Early Links - Big Room Dining Area

Early Links - Reception Area

Early Links - Baby Room Wall Removal

Tourism

Wonders of Wynyard - Security Upgrade

Lighthouse Project

Waratah Museum - Repair Existing Windows

Display Cabinets

Entrance Carpet Replacement

Presentation Infrastructure

Elderly and Disadvantaged

Wynyard Senior Citizens Club - Install a Thermo-mixing Valve

Adoption of strategic plan required prior to installation roll out

o

9

Partially carried forward

9

(partially treated as 2008/2009 creditor) ^

Minor repairs only required

9

9

9

9

9
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Emergency Services

SES Building Extension

SES Security Fencing

SES Unit Entrance Driveway

Engineering - General

Aerial Photos

Workshop Bench Improvements

Small Plant Replacement

TCM 850 Wheel Loader - 1300

Trailer & Pump - Water Cart

Transportation

Reconstruct and seal Coopers Lane

Reconstruction and seal Hoares Lane

Reconstruct and seal Little Village Lane etc

Concrete Driveways - Wynyard and Somerset

Pedestrian Refuge - Church / Inglis Streets

Replace Kerb & Channel - Arthur Street

Replace Kerb & Channel - Hogg Street

Surfacing and No Sealing Aitkins Road - Complete

Surfacing and No Sealing Coates Road - Complete

Surfacing and No Sealing Deep Creek Road Section 2

Surfacing and No Sealing Kimberley Hill Road - Complete

Surfacing and No Sealing Meunna Road - Hills Road / Pruane Road &Sculthorpes Road East

Surfacing and No Sealing Morris Road - Complete
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Transportation cont

Surfacing and No Sealing Rubocks Road - Complete

Rural Reseals - Preolenna Road

Rural Reseals - Reservoir Drive

Reseal Preparation

Urban Reseals - Beaufort Street

Urban Reseals - Inglis Street

Urban Reseals - Inglis Streets

Urban Reseals - Inglis Streets

Footpaths - Inglis Street

Footpaths - Hogg Street (Quiggin to Airport Fence) - Council Contribution

Footpaths - Murchison Highway Yolla

Rural Signage Upgrade

Bridges - Inglis Street / Big Creek

Bridges - Seabrook Road / Seabrook Creek

Bridges - Stennings Road /Blackfish Creek No. 641

Parks and Gardens

Fencing East Wynyard Playgrounds

Power for Gutteridge Gardens

Ronald Crescent - Renew Fencing and Furniture

Table Cape Lookout - Viewing Area Improvement

Wynyard Upgrade - "Lest We Forget Gates"

Power for Anzac Park

Boat Harbour - Shade Structure Over Exposed BBQ
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Parks and Gardens cont

Sisters Beach - Waterways Improvement Program

Waratah- Shaft Access / Parking / Solar Lighting

Waratah - Powerstation Track - Signage and Repairs

Waratah - Barbeque Shelters - Caravan Park

Waratah Waterfall Viewing Area - Safety Fence

Sporting Facilities

Wynyard Squash Club - Renew Floor Boards in Squash Courts

Somerset Recreation Centre - Plastic Seats on Top of Existing Bench (Trial)

Somerset Recreation Centre - Replace Fibreglass Roof Sheets Main Stadium

Somerset Recreation Centre - On-going Replacement of Existing Skylights above Toilets etc

Somerset Surf Club - Commercial Vinyl to Downstairs Changeroom Floors & Showers

Somerset Surf Club - Install Disable Access

Somerset Surf Club - Replace Partition Wall in Men's Changeroom / Repair Column

Somerset Surf Club - Disabled Toilet

Somerset Tennis Club Room - Replace Part of Roof

Yolla Football Clubs - Replace Double Doors

Public Halls

Wynyard Community Centre - Install Thermo-mixing Valve

Wynyard Community Centre - Roof Replacement

Wynyard Community Centre - Window Replacement

Moorleah Hall - Paint Kitchen and Main Hall Ceiling

Moorleah Hall - Replace 4 windows

Moorleah Hall - Replace Gutters and Down Pipes
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Public Halls cont

Old Waratah Post Office - Repaint Exterior of Building

Railway Hall - Commercial Vinyl (Floorboard Look) - Option 2

Drainage

Install Soakage Drain - Simpson Street

Somerset Drainage - New Raglan Street Stormwater

Somerset Drainage - Pit and Manhole Replacement

Wragg Street / Murchison Highway - Pipe Upgrade

Underground Stormwater - Chambers and Athenaeum Hall

Wynyard Drainage Pit and Manhole Replacement

9

9
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Management Structure

Senior Staff

During the year the Council's senior management structure was reviewed to reflect current needs and, in particular, the
implications of resource sharing agreement between Waratah-Wynyard and Circular Head Councils.

The positions comprising Council's Executive Management Team and their incumbents at 30 June 2010 are as follows:

Position

General Manager

Assistant General Manager

Executive Manager Financial Services

Executive Manager Business Strategy

Executive Manager Engineering Services

Executive Manager Development Services

Name

Greg Winton

Tracey Bradley

Lisa Dixon

Douglass Doherty

Matthew Greskie

Paddy Kennedy

In accordance with Sections 72 (1(cd), 72(4) and 72(5) of the Local Government Act 1993 Council is to include within its
Annual Report a statement relating to the total annual remuneration paid to Council employees who hold positions designated
by it as being senior positions. Total Annual remuneration includes the salary paid, contributions to superannuation, value of
the use of any motor vehicle and any other allowances or benefits paid. The amounts below are based on full time equivalent
positions and do not reflect any part-time arrangements in place.

Annual remuneration

$180,000 —$200,000
$160,000 —$180,000
$140,000 —$160,000

No of Employees
**

<1 **

Annual remuneration

$120,000 —$140,000
$100,000 —$120,000
$100,000 —$120,000
$ 80,000 —$100,000

No of Employees

2
^ **

r

This position is currently employed at 0.6 Full Time Equivalent (FTE) due to a part-time employment arrangement
These positions form part of a resource sharing arrangement with Circular Head Council with Waratah-Wynyard Council
responsible for funding 0.5 FTE.
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Full Time Equivalent (PTE) by Department

Department Number of Staff FTE Male Female

Business Performance Unit 12 8.28 3 9

Financial Services 8 6.8 1 7

Community Services 4 2.81 1 3

Engineering Services 13 8.16 6 7

Development Services 6 4.83 2 4

Works & Services Depot 31 31 30 1

Tourism 7 2.54 1 6

Childcare 26 15.2 1 25

Total 107 79.62 45 62

Average Age by Department

Business Performance Unit 48

Financial Services 47

Community Services 51

Engineering Services 43

Development Services 41

Works & Services Depot 44

Tourism 33

Childcare 39

Average Age Overall 43
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Staff Tenure in Excess of 10 Years

Department Number of Staff FTE Male Female

Business Performance Unit 3 3 2 1

Business Strategy 0 0

Financial Services 2 1.8 2

Community Services 1 1 1

Engineering Services 1 1 1

Development Services 1 1 1

Works & Services Depot 13 13 13

Tourism 0 0

Childcare 0 0

Total 21 20.8 18 3

Staff Tenure In Excess of 20 Years

Business Performance Unit

Business Strategy

Financial Services

Community Services

Engineering Services 1 1 1

Development Services

Works & Services Depot 8 8 8

Tourism

Childcare

Total 9 9 9
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■

Resource Shared Positions

staff

General Manager

Executive Manager Engineering Ser
vices

Human Resources Supervisor

Manager of Engineering & Projects

Risk Management Coordinator

Executive Manager Business Strategy

Strategy Facilitator

Strategic Facilities Designer

Waratah-Wynyard Circular Head

Total

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

Staffing—Turnover

01/07/08-30/06/09

No. %

No of FTE Resignations 10.93 16

* Does not include 4 staff who transferred to Cradle Mountain Water

Male

1

1

Female

01/07/09—30/6/10

No. %

2.40 2.92
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Resource Sharing

The Waratah-Wynyard Council and the Circular Head Council agreed to enter into a Resource Sharing Agreement for a two
year period from December 2008. The initiative was born from a desire to make each Council stronger and better. With a
national skills shortage, ever expanding demands and continual pressure to limit rate increases, it was considered that such an
initiative could give each Council an edge in dealing with these issues.

One of the strengths of smaller Councils is the versatility and flexibility of staff and genuine desire to use resources for the best
outcome. Although in local government sharing ideas has long been part of the strength of the sector, it has also often been
ad hoc and generally only with known colleagues and always couched with the need to protect corporate knowledge. The
Resource Sharing Agreement has provided an opportunity to access a greater knowledge base, create an open door
environment for staff to talk, share and work collaboratively. What this has done is build our people, providing an opportunity
for staff to be part of a larger field of expertise.

Smaller Councils are notorious for creating positions which cover a range of responsibilities; the size of the workforce doesn't
change the diversity of the requirements and responsibilities in local government. Resource sharing has enabled
specialisation of some roles, creating a dedicated position to cover a function rather than filling up a position with a bit of this
and that. This is facilitating the development of staff to strengthen and build the overall skills base.

Another consequence of working collaboratively has been the development of shared systems; this has come from a broader
review of what we do, greater input into making things better and support with implementation. Resource sharing has reduced
thinking in isolation about solutions and inspired innovation and the aspiration to do better.

Resource sharing in itself is not an outcome, but a continuing process. The approach taken has been to re-focus financial
resources to maintain service levels to acceptable standards, acknowledging statutory responsibilities and to plan for the
future, enabling progress to be made in addressing business risks.

A report was considered by the Council in May 2010 identifying the progress of efforts associated with this approach.

The Council has agreed to extend the arrangement until 30 November 2013.

As at June 2010, the following roles were subject to a shared arrangement:

General Manager
Human Resources Supervisor
Risk Management Coordinator
Strategic Facilities Designer

Executive Manager Engineering Services
Manager of Engineering & Projects
Executive Manager Business Strategy
Strategy Facilitator
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Hi

For the 2010/2011 year, the following roles are also envisaged to be subject to a shared arrangement;-

Technical Officer - Assets

Strategy Development Officer
Weeds Officer

Executive Manager Financial Services

Assets Co-Coordinator

Occupational Health and Safety Officer
Communication Role

The 2010/2011 Budget estimates provide for combined costs of almost $700,000, with a net transfer of some $150,000 to the
Councii. Costs and revenues into the future wili be dictated by Budget decisions determined by the Council.

Actions proposed for the term of the Agreement, dependent on the availability of resources inciude:-

Strategic Priority / Key Focus Area

Operational Area

Strategic Planning

Project Deiivery

Implementation Time Frame

2010/2011

Tourism

Planning Approvals

Building/plumbing permits

Environmentai Management

Economic

Operational Action

Undertake review of Strategic Pians to
identify opportunities to combine efforts
for advocacy and action on strategic
aims.

Engineering department to deliver 2010/2011
infrastructure projects across both
municipalities.

Examine opportunities for enhanced 2011/2012
synergies to service visitor needs

Participate jointly in the Regional 2010/2011
Planning Process.

Establish a working party to exploit 2011/2012
synergies in the issuing of permits.

Pursue shared arrangements for Weed 2010/2011
Management
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strategic Priority / Key Focus Area

Operational Area

Environmental Management cont

Animal Control

Asset Management and Development

Strategic Priority / Key Focus Area

Operational Area

Sharing of specialised equipment and
software

Strategic Priority / Key Focus Area

Operational Area

Communication and Consultation

Economic

Operational Action

Present arrangements and
recommendations for improved NRM
related activities, particularly in relation
grant funding.

Review and implement an Environmental
Management Plan for both Councils
public assets.

Form a joint working party to explore the
"best" value method for the provision of
animal control services to both

municipalities.

Develop and implement asset
management plans for all major capital
classes for both municipalities.

Environment

Operational Action

Identify opportunities to better utilise
available equipment

Develop program for improved plant
utilisation across both municipalities.
(Program to be presented to Councils for
approval)

Community

Operational Action

Undertake Communications Audit,
implement Communication Strategy

Introduce and refine Interplan reporting
program to inform progress of Council
activities.
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Strategic Priority / Key Focus Area

Operational Area

Public Health

Regulatory Compliance

Youth Services

Professional development

Occupational Health and Safety

Legal Services

IT Services

Community

Operational Action

Form a working party to refine web page
relevance and further develop social
media communication opportunities.

Reconsider opportunities for specialised
role(s)

Reconsider opportunities for specialised
role

Examine additional joint or regional
approaches to support youth service
activities

Present professional development
opportunities based upon identification of
Councillor needs.

Introduce "Employer of Choice"
provisions

Undertake Staff "Training Needs
Analysis" against position descriptions
for both Councils.

Undertake career path review for ail staff.

Implement Contractor Induction System

Implement Employee induction system.

implement skills and license matrix for
mandatory training.

Tender for a joint panel of suppliers of
Legal advice and Counsel.

Form a joint IT services review
committee to consider a strategic action
plan for IT common platform and
Standard Operating Environment's
(SOE)
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Strategic Priority / Key Focus Area

Operational Area

Policy Development

Risk Management

Payroll

Procurement

Long Term Financial Planning

Governance

Operational Action

Establish a combined document quality
management system.

Establish an internal audit committee to

make recommendations for

harmonisation policies between Councils
where appropriate.

Revise Risk Management Committee
roles.

Employ resource shared officer for Risk
Management

Embed Risk Management principles for
all projects and capital works.

Implement interchangeable payroll staff
to provide leave cover and support
between Councils.

Initiate procurement solutions to both
Councils which demonstrate effective

and efficient gains.

Prepare and implement 4 year forward
estimates and 10 year indicative long
term financial plans.

Implementation Time Frame

2011/2012

2010/2011

2010/2011

2010/2011

2011/2012

2012/2013

2010/2011

2010/2011
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STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS

Legislative and Policy Framework
The Local Government Act 1993 provides that specific items are to be recorded with the Council's Annual Report.

"Section 77—Grants and benefits—The details of any grant made or benefit provided are to be included in the annual report of
the council."

Organisation Reason Paid

Wynyard AFL Auskick Centre Inc Community Assistance Grant $500

Wynyard Yacht Club Inc Community Assistance Grant $980

Inglis Pony Club Community Assistance Grant $500

Wynyard Softball Club Community Assistance Grant $500

Wynyard Gymnastics Club Inc Community Assistance Grant $95

Wynyard Gymnastics Club Inc Community Assistance Grant $80

Wynyard Bowls Club Community Assistance Grant $506

Samurai Ju-Jitsu Fed las Community Assistance Grant $1,500

Wynyard Somerset Tennis Club Community Assistance Grant $1,000

Hellyer College Community Assistance Grant $500

Wynyard Rainbow Guides Community Assistance Grant $300

Somerset Girl Guide Support Group Community Assistance Grant $300

1®'Wynyard Scout Group Community Assistance Grant $500

Lighthouse Cluster of Schools Community Assistance Grant $3,000

Waratah Primary School (School closed - not taken up) Community Assistance Grant $0

Yolla District High School Cattle Handling Team Community Assistance Grant $2,000

Somerset Puddleduck Playcentre Inc Community Assistance Grant $123

Somerset Scout Group Community Assistance Grant $500

Myalla Community Centre Community Assistance Grant $800

Elliott District Association Community Assistance Grant $1,930

The Wynyard Chorale Inc Community Assistance Grant $1,000
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Organisation

North West Poultry Society

Australian Breastfeeding Association

Women of the World

Wynyard Camera Club

Wynyard Ladies Probus

The Country Women's Association

Cam Retirees Club

Lion's Club of Wynyard Inc

Wynyard Community Men's Shed

Cam / Somerset Neighbourhood Watch

Central Wynyard Neighbourhood Watch

Somerset Christmas Pageant Committee

Lions Club of Wynyard

Wynyard Garden Club Inc

Wynyard Municipal Band

Artscape.comm

Rotary Club of Somerset

Vincent Industries

Amy Phillips

Mr B Denehey

Wynyard Football Club

Boat Harbour Surf Club

Boat Harbour Surf Club—Australian Championships

Table Cape Primary School

Western Division Indoor Bowls

Reason

Community Assistance Gran

Community Assistance Gran

Community Assistance Gran

Community Assistance Gran

Community Assistance Gran

Community Assistance Gran

Community Assistance Gran

Community Assistance Gran

Community Assistance Gran

Community Assistance Gran

Community Assistance Gran

Community Assistance Gran

Community Assistance Gran

Community Assistance Gran

Community Assistance Gran

Community Assistance Gran

Community Assistance Gran

Community Assistance Gran

Community Assistance Gran

Community Assistance Gran

Community Assistance Gran

Community Assistance Gran

Community Assistance Gran

Community Assistance Gran

Community Assistance Gran

TOTAL

Paid

$1,053

$300

$90

$360

$100

$180

$1,000

$1,000

$1,500

$300

$200

$500

$1,000

$700

$3,000

$600

$1,000

$1,000

$500

$500

$1,500

$960

$500

$200

$80

$34,737
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Land Donated by Council under Section 177

Council did not during the year donate any land under the provisions of Section 177 of the Local Government Act 1993.

Contacts over $100,000

Description of Contract Period of Contract Contract Value (ex Contractor
GST)

Asphalt Surfacing

Asphalt Surfacing

09/04/10—14/05/10 $193,272.73 Roadways

Address of

Contractor

3 Ormsby Street,
Burnie

23/09/09—02/04/10 $119,697.45 Downer ED! Works 44 Gleadow Street,
Invermay

Bridge Replacement, 23/09/09—24/03/10
Stennings Road and Blackfish
Creek

$155,596.91 Tas Span Civil
Contracting

PO Box 255, Latrobe

Sprayed Bituminous Surfacing 23/09/09—02/04/10 $275,599.55 Downer EDI Works 44 Gleadow Street,
invermay
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Simone LeFrevre

(B&E) presenting
Raelene Robertson

with Customer Service

Excellence Award

Rick Ferguson (The
Advocate) presenting
Rachel Anderson-

Vanity Hair Salon with
Employer of Choice
Award

I Simone LeFrevre

(B&E) presenting Dr
Peter Holm with Small

Business Award

PROGRAMS OVERVIEW

Governance

Program Objective:

To provide leadership and good local governance to the Waratah-Wynyard community, operating within the legislative
framework established for local government in Tasmania.

Activity Summary:

>

>

>

>

>

>

Conducted 12 ordinary Council meetings for the year. The annual general meeting
was held on December 14 at the Christian City Church Centre, as part of the Civic
Celebration.

Conducted 1 Special Meeting of Council.

Held 18 Group Discussions to assist Councillors in developing policies and procedures
to consider specific issues.

Councillor Development - provided professional development opportunities both in-
house and through conferences/seminars.

Developed and adopted the 2009-2014 Strategic Plan and Its associated Action Plans
in December 2O09.

Commenced a comprehensive review of the policies of Council.

Sally Sadler (Harbour Houses
presenting Cora Waal with
Volunteer of the Year Award

Executive Management

Program Objective:

To manage and direct the human and financial resources of the Council to achieve optimum use of public monies and the most
effective use of business assets and human resources and to provide professional advice and support to Council in its
strategic and policy-making roles.
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Executive Management cont

Activity Summary:

^ Managed the operations of Council in a professional manner in accordance with legislative requirements and Council
policies.

^  Pursued, where available, economic development and expansion opportunities that will be of beneficial to the
community.

^  Supported the continuing professional development of Council's staffing resources.
^  Showcased service excellence within the Waratah-Wynyard municipal area at the Civic Celebration.
^ Managed acquisitions fund and replacement of motor vehicles.
^  Produced Council and Committee meeting notices, agendas, minutes and correspondence in a timely manner and

compliant with relevant legislation.

Business Strategy Unit

The Business Strategy Unit (BSU) was established in the financial year as a functional department serving both the
Waratah-Wynyard Council and the Circular Head Council. It was developed to further the strategic interests of both
municipalities.

The aim of the BSU is to deliver the strategic objectives of each Council, by preparing for development strategic projects
connected to specific aims in the Strategic Plans of both councils through innovation, consultation and strategic thinking, whilst
managing for value in the execution of these aims.

In order to deliver this capability the professional disciplines employed by the BSU are divided into two distinct functions.

Concept and Design by asking: What can we do?
Understanding the strategic plans and aspirations of each community. Innovate with new ideas and techniques for the
development of business strategies.

Costing, Planning and Delivery by asking: Does it work?
Ensuring that projects can be practically applied with a best value philosophy.
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Business Strategy Unit cent

Four positions form the BSU, being;-

Executive Manager Business Strategy
Provides oversight and financial management for the BSU. Sets priorities of work for the BSU and determines the intent of
the Council and the Community with regard to Strategic Projects.

Strategic Facilities Designer
Innovates with new ideas and techniques for the development of business strategies, providing designs and progresses
projects from concept to design.

Strategy Facilitator
In respect of strategic projects is responsible for stakeholder liaison, seeking financing opportunities, feasibility and
research and meeting statutory planning requirements

Strategy Development Officer
Provides accurate costing and ensures that projects can be practically applied and seeks best value using available and
emerging technologies. Undertakes project planning towards capital expenditure, ensuring that projects remain "on track"
and remain "shovel ready".

The BSU commenced in January 2010 with the creation of the new role of Executive Manager Business Strategy.
Subsequently, in March 2010 recruitment for the three remaining roles occurred. Two of these positions were filled, with the
role of Strategy Development Officer still vacant.

The BSU has an external focus and provides internal consultancy relieving Council's current departments free to pursue their
core business of providing service to the community.

Previous experience suggests that the greater number of projects that are ready, the more likely external funding can be
achieved. In the modern funding paradigm, funding commitments are biased towards projects that are mature in preparation,
demonstrate need and are "Shovel Ready" so that they can be rapidly deployed once funding has been secured. Successful
funding means that monies that are not "rates income" are spent for the benefit of all the community.

In addition to facilitating and prioritising strategic projects related to the aims of the endorsed Strategic Plans, the BSU will also
prioritise a range of projects already under consideration, as well as other projects put forward by Councillors or which emerge
from the wider community from time to time (i.e.. Community Service Projects). It may also generate external income from a
variety of sources as a consultancy to the wider community.
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Business Strategy Unit cont

The BSD will assist in presenting and facilitating debate on the merits/ advantages/ disadvantages/ options/ strategic
progression etc of a wide range of different projects (including those dealing with policy development).

One of the key steps taken by the Business Strategy Unit has been to commence dialogue individually with all Councillors in
order to ascertain their hopes and aspirations for their communities. In the long term ways can then be found to realise projects
with community benefit, while being connected to the Strategic Plans and other endeavours of Council business.

The BSU have been involved in the Wynyard Wharf project, a concept to enhance the Wynyard Cenotaph and Avenue
entrance and plans to refurbish the Wynyard Seniors Citizens Hall. The BSU has liaised with Members of both State and
Federal parliaments and delivered presentations to local organisations by invitation to create awareness of the BSU role.

Corporate Services

Program Objective:

To provide administrative services that are responsive and efficient in assisting the Council to undertake its functions and
which create a cooperative link between the Council and the community.

Activity Summary:

^  Prepared the 2009/2010 Annual Report and coordinate the Annual General Meeting of Council as part of an annual
Civic Celebration in November 2010.

^ Coordinated the preparation of the 2010/2011 Annual Plan.
^ Reviewed and developed appropriate risk management strategies.
^ Administratively, Council's meeting schedule for the year was completed efficiently with only one Special Meeting being

required.

During the year, as a staff development exercise, a team comprising staff members from both Waratah-Wynyard and Circular
Head Councils participated in the Tasmanian section of the Local Government Managers Australia (LGMA) Management
Challenge.
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Corporate Services cont

The Gouncirs website was regularly maintained by Council staff, providing current information and facilitating public access to
Council services, documentation and decision making. Growth in usage of the site has continued during the year, with the
monthly average number of visits being 3,871 an increase from the previous year's average of 3,575.

Financial Services

Program Objective:

Financial Services includes the provision of accounting and financial management services to the organisation, collection of
rates and other revenue, payment of accounts, compliance with applicable Australian Accounting Standards, payroll,
information technology and property management.

Financial Services aims to provide responsible and accountable control of Council's financial resources and to create a
cooperative link between Council's departments and the vt/ider community.

Activity Summary:

^ Completed Council's Annual Financial Statements by 30 September 2009
^ Completed the preparation of the 2010/11 budget estimates, capital works program and setting of

rates by 30 June 2010

^ Purchased Interplan strategic reporting software
^  Purchased BIS budgeting and reporting software
^ Purchased an additional photocopier/printer for the Depot

Financiai Management:

The Statement of Financial Performance recorded a deficit of $7,030,449 compared to a surplus of $3,925,067 for last year.

Variations from the budget included increases in grants of $770,000, consisting of: $220,000 increase in Transport Financial
Assistance Grants, $330,000 for the Wynyard Wharf and $129,000 in RLCIP Grants; an increase in reimbursements/
contributions of $385,000 - the bulk of which was $208,000 in resource sharing income and an increase in employee costs
which is directly attributable to increased probability factors in calculating Long Service Leave Provisions.
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Johnny Roughley
removing Sea
Spurge with help of
volunteers.

Financial Services cont

The operating surplus for the year (before extraordinary items) was $69,903 surplus, compared with a budgeted loss of
$129,969.

The extraordinary item for the year was the change in the fair value of Council's investment in Cradle Mountain Water. This
resulted in a book loss of $7,100,352 for the year.

Cash and cash reserves remained at a positive level. Cash moved from $5,586,453 in 2008/09 to $5,823,177 in 2009/10.

Borrowings decreased by $3,118,330 over the period ($2,870,909 of which was transferred to Cradle Mountain Water)

Community Services

Program Objective

To promote community awareness of and participation in local social, recreational and cultural activities and services.

Activity Summary

>

>

>

>

>

>

>

Provided a financial and in-kind assistance grants scheme for local community groups. Financial support of over
$34,000 was provided across 46 community groups and organisations, in-kind support was provided to various
community groups through access to equipment, letters of support for projects and assistance with submission writing.

Local artistic and cultural organisations were provided with support and advice when requested. The Wynyard Chorale,
Big hART and Lighthouse Film Society were just some of the groups supported.

Funding through external grants was accessed and funding received by community groups was administered to support
programs to meet community needs.

Continuing support for the local mentoring program, 'Co-Pilots' through mentoring and training.

The education scholarship program was provided through the Bill French Memorial Scholarship for a University of
Tasmania student. Daniel Matic was the recipient of the scholarship for 2010.

The Council Youth Team provided regular contact with schools and developed activities and events for Youth Week.
The Early Years Reference Group continued to develop strategies to support families and children.

Community groups were encouraged to register relevant events for inclusion in local Events Calendar.
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Community Services cont

^ Volunteers serving the community were recognised at a regional morning tea held at the Senior Citizens Club.
^  Portable marquees were purchased for community events and have been accessed by community groups.
^ Council was successful in receiving State Government funding for the construction of an extension to Wynyard Senior

Citizens Club. Design development is underway and construction of the building will be completed in 2011.

^ Continued monitoring and maintenance of the Sisters Island television translator infrastructure with the objective of
continuous service coverage and minimal delay in service restoration following disruption.

^  Investigations into available options for translator equipment upgrade to provide digital service has continued.
^ There are regular reviews of roles, functions, viability and community expectation of relevant program service delivery.

This was achieved through the consultation process for the development of the 2009 - 2014 Strategic Plan.

Children and Youth Services

Program Objective:

To efficiently and effectively deliver a range of children and youth programs that meet community aspirations and needs and to
encourage the creation of additional programs to meet newly identified needs.

Activity Summary:

^ Operated efficient and effective Child Care Centres in Wynyard and Waratah. Wynyard Childcare Centre has continued
to have good utilisation and various improvements at the centre have supported best practice standards for childcare
including the development of a dining area and removal of walls to provided additional play space for babies. There was
also a major renovation to the reception area to 'update' this part of the centre and to facilitate improved customer
services. The childcare program operating at Waratah Primary School was reintroduced in August 2009 with the
program working collaboratively with the LiL program provided at the school. Utilisation of the program has been
encouraging and the program continues to support families in the area.

^ The 'Little Goldie Street' Annex at the Wynyard Community Centre has continued to deliver quality preschool care with
the children participating in a wide range of community engagement activities.

^ The transfer of the Wynyard after school hours and vacation care programs at Table Cape Primary in Gibbons Street
has been successful with the program now being delivered from a purpose designed space.
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Madame Stella

posing 2009
Bloomin' Tulips!
Festival

Waratah-Wynyard Council Youth Team—getting to know
each other at Sisters Beach

Childrert and Youth Services cent

^ The Somerset after school care program was closed due to the
amalgamation of the two Somerset schools and will be
reestablished in 2011 in the new joint school on the West
Somerset site. Boat Harbour after school care achieved

successful accreditation in 2010.

^  Provided a child restraint (baby capsule) hire service which was
accessed by the community.

^  Provided access to an accredited learn to swim program delivered
by the Wynyard Hydrotherapy Centre.

^ Conducted a Junior Sports Development Program in May 2010.
^  Supported the Waratah-Wynyard Youth Team for the purposes of engaging young people in community consultation

and community activities.

^  Provided a range of activities for Youth Week including a SK8 & Create youth event at the Wynyard Skate Park.
^ The Quality Improvement and Accreditation process provides a structure to regularly review roles, functions, and

operations and measure community expectation of childcare program service delivery.

Tourism

Program Objective:

To investigate, develop and implement strategies for public promotion of the Waratah-Wynyard area to maximise economic
benefit through tourism.

Activity Summary:

^ Wonders of Wynyard Information and Exhibition Centre - The Information Centre had almost 40,000 visitors over the
year and continued improvement to the facility through an upgraded electronic security system, secured display cabinets
for exhibits and video presentation facilities and equipment.

^ Targeted advertising was achieved through participation in the Zone Marketing program.
^ Maintained membership of, and active involvement in. Cradle Coast Authority tourism structure.
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Community
Opening — Waratah
Athenaeum Hall —

15 December 2009

Tourism cent

^ Commenced a review of the Waratah-Wynyard Tourism Development Plan.

^  Showcased local arts and crafts at the Wynyard Exhibition Centre with ongoing rotation of exhibitions at the centre.

^ The Athenaeum Hall 'Gateway to the Tarkine' was officially opened. The Athenaeum Hall was restored with joint
funding from Council and the Commonwealth government. It houses the 'Gateway to the Tarkine' an interpretation
centre on the Tarkine and the history of the area.

^ Works commenced on the Table Cape Lighthouse and the establishment of Table Cape Lighthouse tours as a visitor
attraction are being developed.

^ Tourism signage was upgraded with replacement of the Boat Harbour Beach information panel and additional long bay
parking signs installed.

^ The Bloomin' Tulips Festival was held in October and was the largest festival to date.

Emergency Services

Program Objective:

To maintain an efficient emergency management capability covering the whole municipal area.

Activity Summary:

^  Provided administrative and financial support for volunteer emergency service units at Wynyard and Waratah.

^ Wynyard Unit - Building extension to increase storage capacity was subject to external grant funding for which funding
opportunities are being investigated.

^ Wynyard Unit - Installation of security boundary fencing was completed.
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Building Control

Program Objective:

To determine building applications and carry out the functions of a Permit Authority under the Building Act 2000 to achieve
housing, commercial, and industrial building in the municipal area that is safe and compliant with legislative requirements.

Activity Summary:

^  Continued to process building permits as expeditiously as possible—over 237 building approvals granted.
^  Ensure that Council's statutory obligations under the building legislation are maintained.
^  Except where approvals from other Statutory Agencies were required, all building permits applied for over this

period and accompanied by full documentation were issued within an average of 5.9 days of lodgement of the
application.

^  237 permits were issued for buildings with a total value of $36,421,804.

Health Services

Program Objective:

To provide for the community an environment free of health threatening risks particularly relating to air, water and food and to
encourage and support healthy lifestyles.

Activity Summary:

^ Determined acceptable and achievable levels of environmental and public health by ongoing monitoring, inspection,
education and, where necessary, by applying corrective measures by mutual consent or enforcement of legislation. A
total of 33 places of assembly were registered along with 4 public health risk activities, 2 regulated system (eg cooling
towers) and 96 private water supplies were maintained on Council's registers. 1 notifiable disease investigation was
carried out and appropriate advice given to the affected persons.

^  Ensured safe standards of food offered for sale are maintained by inspection of food establishments on a risk
management basis and providing advice / education for food handlers. There were 107 food premises registered and 43
temporary food licences issued.

^  Undertook sampling and testing to ensure potable water supplies are safe for human consumption.
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Health Services cont

^  Sampling of recreational waters for bacterial levels was carried out over the summer period on a weekly basis. Sample
points are located at the main bathing beaches of Sisters Beach, Boat Harbour Beach, Wynyard and Somerset. Results
indicate compliance with the guidelines for recreational waters at all locations except Sisters Beach where bacterial
levels at the mouth of Sisters Beach still require sign posting to advise the public of pollution risk.

^  Encouraged vaccination of children and adults against diseases. Monthly community immunisation sessions were held
at Wynyard with bi-monthly sessions being held at Waratah. 275 vaccinations were administered to 233 persons. The
majority of vaccinations are now administered by local general practitioners.

^ A school vaccination program was continued in 2010 to deliver Gardasil vaccine to female students. Also offered were
vaccinations against Hepatis B, Chickenpox and Tetanus—78 students took advantage of this 3 stage program.

Town Planning

Program Objective:

To identify and plan for the community's needs and the sustainable use of its resources by providing a framework which will
permit development within the municipal area in accordance with the principles of the State's Resource Management and
Planning System.

Activity Summary:

^ Continued to process planning applications and requests for information in an efficient and timely manner.
^ Maintained a review of actual development approval timeframes to identify process change that potentially could reduce

future approval timeframes—new processes under the Water and Sewerage Reform transition will extend approval
times.

^ Continued to ensure decision-making is consistent with State Policies.
^ Continued the ongoing review and updating of the Planning Scheme—ongoing in accordance with the Regional

Planning Initiative.

^  243 development applications were submitted to Council with 235 being approved under delegation and 28 being
approved by Council. No applications were refused and the applicants withdrew a total of 3 applications. Also at 30th
June 2010 there were 22 applications pending a decision.

Waratah-Wynyard Council Annual Report 2009-2010—Page 46



KM

■

Town Planning cent

^  10 subdivision applications were submitted with 19 being approved under delegation and 2 being refused by Council. A
further application was withdrawn and 3 applications were pending at the 30th June 2010.

^ A total of 2 planning appeals were lodged against Council determinations, 1 of which was withdrawn and the other was
dismissed by the tribunal.

^ Council lodged 1 Section 64 proceedings under the Land use Planning and Approvals Act 1993 during the year.

Engineering Support Services

Program Objective:

To provide engineering services that facilitate efficient and cost effective completion of Council's asset management and
capital works programmes and to maintain Council's built assets at an appropriate standard that complies with legislative
requirements.

Activity Summary:

^ Continued the development of a complete Integrated Asset Management Plan. Transport Management Asset Plan
completed.

^ Continued the development and implementation of operational policies including sen/ice level targets for Council's
infrastructure assets.

^  Conducted relevant cost benefit analysis before assuming new or additional commitments.
^ Coordinated the implementation of operational and capital works programs.
^  Regularly reviewed roles, functions, viability and community expectation of relevant program service delivery.
^  Completed Wynyard Works Depot - Workshop bench improvements.
^ Undertaken plant replacement program as approved.
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Compliance Services

Program Objective:

To promote responsible dog ownership in a manner that fully recognizes and respects the rights of dog owners and others in
the community.

To ensure that private and Council controlled land within the municipal area does not present a fire or weed threat to adjoining
land.

To ensure the objectives of the Environmental Management and Pollution Control Act 1994 are carried out to prevent or
mitigate pollution within the municipal area.

Activity Summary:

^ Council's Dog Management Policy to promote responsible dog ownership continued to be implemented.
^  Promote dog registrations in accordance with the Dog Control Act 2000 - 2642 dogs registered.
^  Prompt investigation of dog nuisance complaints and reports of animals at large -127 dogs impounded of which 81 were

reclaimed, 22 were adopted by new owners and 13 were euthanized.

^  91 Fire Abatement notices were served with the affect property owners. Council carried out an abatement of overgrowth
on 24 properties and recovered the costs from the landholders.

^ Continued to monitor and facilitate the removal program of crack willow within local river catchments.
^ Continued to investigate and take action on issues relating to pollution.
^ Utilized Cradle Coast Natural Resource Management Strategy.
^ Continually monitored inventory to protect natural resources.
^  Ensured decision-making is consistent with State Policies.
^  Ensured the weed management strategy maintains currency.
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Waste Management

Program Objective:

To minimise and dispose of solid waste and household garbage in a manner which is environmentally responsible and cost
effective.

Activity Summary:

^  Ensured the effective contract administration for collection and disposal of litter from streets and public reserves and the
operations of the Wynyard Waste Transfer Station.

^ Waste minimization and cost efficiencies continued to be achieved.

^  Pursue implementation of strategies included within the Council's adopted Waste Management Strategy.
^  Ensured the efficient collection and disposal of household garbage.
^  Ensured the efficient collection of recycling by local service providers.
^ Continued to review waste practices in line with the Waste Management Strategy.

Cemeteries

Program Objective:

To cost effectively maintain cemeteries under Council's control to a standard acceptable to the community.

Activity Summary:

^ Cemeteries continued to be maintained at an acceptable standard for the public.
^  Ensured contract management compliance with standards that meet community expectations.
^ Accurate maintenance of cemetery registers continued.
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Public Toilets

Program Objective:

To provide public convenience facilities which meet community expectation in standards of presentation and hygiene.

Activity Summary;

^ Continued to maintain public toilet facilities throughout the municipal area.
^  Efficiently maintained contract administration with regard to cleaning of public conveniences.

Transport

Program Objective:

To maintain Council's roads and bridges cost effectively in a safe and presentable condition for users.

Activity Summary:

^ Maintained Council's road network in a safe and presentable condition.

^ Completed a rural signage upgrade.
^ Resealed roads and streets as determined by the budget.
^ Reconstructed and sealed Coopers Lane - from Seabrook Road to existing seal (0.85kms).
^ Reconstructed and sealed Hoares Lane from Murchison Highway to Back Cam Link Road (1.16kms).

^ Reconstructed and sealed Little Village Lane and associated minor roads.
^ Completed the re-sheeting program for unsealed roads as determined by the budget.
^ Constructed a footpath in Inglis Street, Wynyard between York Street and Bass Highway.
^ Constructed a footpath in Murchison Highway, Yolla between School Lane and the public hall.
^ Replaced bridge over Blackfish Creek on Stennings Road.
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Reserves

Program Objective:

To maintain the existing network of public parks and reserves efficiently and cost-effectively to a standard which meets
community expectations and which complements or contributes positively to the natural landscape of the municipal area.

Activity Summary:

^ Maintained reserves in a safe and presentable condition in conformity with Council policy.

^ A Master currently being developed for the Wynyard Wharf and Jetty structure replacement.
^  Completed East Wynyard Foreshore - fence road frontage of two children's playgrounds
^ Completed Gutteridge Gardens - Connect 3-phase power near boardwalk
^  Completed Wynyard Cenotaph - upgrade memorial gates
^ Table Cape Lookout - redevelopment progressing
^ Commenced Ronald Crescent Reserve - Replace fencing and furniture

^  Completed Anzac Park - Provide power supply and connection
^  Completed Boat Harbour Beach - Shade structure over Barbecue Facility
^  Completed Waratah Camping Ground - upgrade existing barbecue facility and shelter
^ Completed Waratah Main Street Reserve - Install safety fencing at waterfall viewing area
^ Completed Waratah area - Upgrade visitor access and viewing safety at historical aqueduct shaft
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Sports

Program Objective:

To maintain recreational facilities which are appropriate to the needs of the community.

Activity Summary:

^ Maintained sporting facilities in a safe and presentable condition in conformity with Council policy.
^ Developed Master Plan for Wynyard Sporting Precinct.
^ Completed Wynyard Squash Centre - Replace court floor boards
^ Completed Somerset Surf Club - Vinyl floor covering in ground floor change rooms
^ Completed Somerset Surf Club - Replace partition wall in ground floor change room
^ Completed Somerset Indoor Recreation Centre - Replace fibreglass roof section.
^ Completed Somerset Tennis Club -Complete roof replacement

Public Halls

Program Objective:

To provide public convenience facilities which meet community expectation in standards of presentation and hygiene.

Activity Summary:

^ Maintained the facilities provided for public purposes at an appropriate standard.
^ Completed Wynyard Community Centre - Replace roof cladding
^ Completed Moorleah Hall - repaint exterior
^ Completed Moorleah Hall - Repaint kitchen and main hall ceiling
^ Completed Moorleah Hall - Replace four windows
^ Completed Moorleah Hall - Replace gutters and downpipes
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Public Halls cont

^  Completed Waratah Post Office (Old) - Repaint exterior
^ Completed Railway Institute Hall - Floor boards repaired, sanded and varnished

Stormwater Drainage

Program Objective:

To adequately discharge Council's responsibilities in relation to stormwater drainage within the Wynyard and Somerset
Drainage Districts and to develop a stormwater drainage system at Sisters Beach that meets the present and future needs of
the community.

Activity Summary:

^ Maintain reticulation system within budget.

^  Satisfactory completion of maintenance works within programmed timeframes and budgetary allocation.

^  Simpson Street - Install soakage drain from Lyons Street west
^  Raglan Street - Install new pipeline between Nos. 39 and 45Murchison Highway - Upgrade road crossing drainage
^  Somerset Drainage - Pit and manhole replacement

^ Wynyard Drainage - Pit and manhole replacement
^ Waratah - Install pipeline to service Council Office and Athenaeum Hall

^ Drainage installation Dodgin/Lewis Streets.
^  Drainage installation Pelissier Street, from Arthur Street eastward.
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Comprehensive Income Statement
For the year Ended 30 June 2010

Actual Budget Actual

2010 2010 2009

Note $ $ $

Revenue

Rates 7,314,073 7,224,048 9,993,766

User Charges 1,856,244 1,882,600 2,923,695

Interest 354,307 217,295 480,933

Reimbursements/contributions 454,761 68,749 338,582

Government grants 8 4,214,097 3,444,728 4,611,624

Other 15,454 - 32,591

Total Revenue 14,208,936 12,837,420 18,381,191

Expenses

Employee costs 3 4,642,099 4,278,884 4,293,373

Materials and contracts 5,050,923 4,531,660 7,186,142

Depreciation 4 2,865,418 2,930,983 3,587,944

Loss/(Gain) on disposal of assets 5 442,272 (13,800) 564,991

State levies 367,603 456,034 388,806

Borrowing costs 6 27,570 32,895 193,197

Remissions and discounts 589,296 620,870 799,833

Other 7 218,852 209,863 260,134

Total Expenses 14,204,033 13,047,389 17,274,420

The above Comprehensive Income Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
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Comprehensive Income Statement cont
For the year Ended 30 June 2010

Surplus/(Deficit) before:

Donated Assets

Recognition of Assets

Derecognition of assets

Surplus/(Deficit) for year before:

Other Comprehensive Income

Change in Fair Value of Investment in Cradle
Mountain Water

Asset Revaluations

Comprehensive Result

Note

31

Actual Budget Actual

2010 2010 2009

$ $ $

4,903 (209,969) 1,106,771

80,000 212,635

65,000 - -

-
- (1,766,345)

69,903 (129,969) (446,939)

(7,100,352) - -

-
- 4,372,006

(7,030,449) (129,969) 3,925,067

The above Comprehensive Income Statement should be read in conjunction writh the accompanying notes
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statement of Cash Flows cont

For the year Ended 30 June 2010

Cash flows from investing activities

Cash Used

Payments for Property, Plant and Equipment

Cash Received

Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment

Share of Profit of Associate

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Cash Used

Financial liabilities

Cash Received

Financial liabilities

Net cash (used in) financing activities

Net Increase in Cash Held

Cash at beginning of year

Cash at end of year

Note

2010 2009

$ $

(3,567,920) (6,280,294)

(3,567,920) (6,280,294)

523,596 593,200

291,958

523,596 885,158

(3,044,324) (5,395,136)

(247,421) (620,634)

- 1,000,000

(247,421) 379,366

236,724 4,004

5,586,453 5,582,449

5,823,177 5,586,453

The above Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
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INTRODUCTION

The Waratah Wynyard Council was established on 2 April, 1993 and is a body corporate with perpetual succession and a common seal.

The Council's Administration Centre is located at 21 Saunders St, Wynyard.

The functions of the Council include:

•  to provide for the health, safety and welfare of the community:

•  represent and promote the interests of the community;

•  to provide for the peace, order and good govemment of the municipal area.

This financial report is a general purpose financial report that consists of a Comprehensive Income Statement, Balance Sheet, Statement of Changes

in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows and notes accompanying these financial statements. The general purpose financial report complies with
Australian Accounting Standards, other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB), and the Local
Govemment Act 1993 (LGA1993) (as amended).

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUCIES

The significant policies which have been adopted in the preparation of this financial report are:

(a> Basis of Accounting

The general purpose financial report has been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, other authoritative
pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board, and the Local Govemment Act 1993 (as amended).

The following Australian Accounting Standards have been issued or amended and are applicable to the Council but are not yet effective.

They have not been adopted in preparation of the financial statements at reporting date.

Standard / interpretation 9, Applicable for annual reporting
periods beginning or ending on

Impact on Local Govemment
financial statements

AASB 2009-5 Further Amendments Some amendments will result in
to Australian Accounting Standards accounting changes for presentation,
arising from the Annual recognition or measurement
Improvements Project. [AASB 5, 8, purposes, while other amendments
101, 107,117,118,136 & 139] will relate to terminology and editorial

changes.

Beginning 1 Jan 2010 Terminology and editorial changes^
mpact minor.
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Standard / interpretation Summary m Applicable for annual reporting
i periods beginning or ending on

Impact on Local Government
financial statements

AASB 2009-8 Amendments to

Australian Accounting Standards -
Group Cash-settled Share-based
Payment Transactions. [AASB 2]

The amendments clarify the scope of b Beginning 1 Jan 2010
AASB 2. h

No impact. AASB 2 does not apply to
Local Government; consequently this
Standard does not apply.

AASB 2009-9 Amendments to

Australian Accounting Standards -
Additional Exemptions for First-time
Adopters [AASB 1}

Applies to entities adopting Australiani Beginning 1 Jan 2010 iNo impact .Relates only to ftrst time
Accounting Standards for the first i jadopters of Australian Accounting
time, to ensure entities will not face 1 Jstandards.
undue cost or effort in the transition | 1
process in particular situations. | |

AASB 2009-10 Amendments to The Standard makes amendments toi Beginning 1 Feb 2010
Australian Accounting Standards - AASB 132, stating that rights issues |
Classification of Rights Issues [AASB must now be classed as equity ratheri
132] than derivative liabilities. 1

No impact. Local Government do not
issue rights, warrants and options,
consequently the amendment does |
not impact on the statements. |

AASB 9 Financial Instruments This standard simplifies requirements
for the classification and

measurement of financial assets

resulting from Phase 1 of the lASB's
project to replace IAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement (AASB 139 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement).

;

Beginning 1 Jan 2013 Detail of impact is still being
assessed.

.

AASB 2009-11 Amendments to

Australian Accounting Standards
arising from AASB 9 [AASB 1, 3, 4, 5,
7, 101, 102, 108, 112, 118, 121, 127,

128, 131, 132, 136, 139, 1023 & 1038
and Interpretations 10 & 12]

This gives effect to consequential
changes arising from the issuance of
AASB 9.

1
Beginning 1 Jan 2013 Detail of impact is still being

assessed.
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Standard / Interpretation ; Summary

AASB 2009-12 Amendments to

Australian Accounting Standards
[AASBs 5, 8, 108, 110, 112, 119, 133,
137, 139, 1023 & 1031 and
Interpretations 2, 4, 16, 1039 & 1052]

I Applicable for annual reporting
; periods beginning or ending on

This Standard amends AASB 8 to

require an entity to exercise i
judgement in assessing whether a
government and entities know to be
under the control of that government
are considered a single customer for
purposes of certain operating
segment disclosures .This Standard
also makes numerous editorial

amendments to other AASs.

I Beginning 1 Jan 2011

AASB 2009-13 Amendments to Consequential amendment to AASB 1 i Beginning Uul 2010
Australian Accounting Standards arising arising from publication of Interpretation!
from Interpretation 19. [AASB 1] 19

AASB 2009-14 Amendments to Amendment to Interpretation 14 arising
Australian Interpretation - Prepayments from the issuance of Prepayments of a
of a Minimum Funding Requirement Minimum Funding Requirement
[AASB Interpretation 14]

Beginning 1 Jan 2011

AASB 1053 Establishes a differential reporting Beginning 1 Jan 2013
Application of Tiers of Australian framework, which consists of two tiers
Accounting Standards reporting requirements |

' Annual reporting periods beginning on or after

Impact on Local Government
financial sta'enienr'^

AASB 8 does not apply to Local
Government therefore no impact
expected. Otherwise, only editorial
changes arsing from amendments to
other standards, no major impact.
Impacts of editorial amendments are
not expected to be significant.

Local Govemments do not extinguish
financial liabilities with equity
instruments, therefore requirements of
Interpretation 17 and related
amendments have no impact

Expected to have no significant impact

Expected to have no significant impact

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) form the basis of the Australian Accounting Standards (AAS) adopted by the AASB.
Some AAS's contain requirements specific to not-for-profit entities that are inconsistent with IFRS requirements.

Except to the extent that these special provisions require, this financial report complies with IFRS.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUCIES CONT

(b)

(c)

(d)

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of historical costs and except where stated, does not take into account changing
money values or fair values of non-current assets. These accounting policies have been consistently applied and except where there is a
change in accounting policy, are consistent with those of the previous year.

In the application of IFRS, management is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstance, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of IFRS that have significant effects on the financial statements and estimates with a
significant risk of material adjustments in the next year are disclosed, where applicable, in the relevant notes to the financial statements.

All entities controlled by Council that have material assets or liabilities, such as Special Committees of Management, have been included in
this financial report. All transactions between these entities and Council have been eliminated in full. The only Special Committee of the
Waratah-Wynyard Council that have separate financial transactions is the 'Bloomin' Tulip Festival Committee.

The Local Government Reporting Entltv

All Funds through which Council controls resources to carry on its functions have been included in the financial statements of Council.

Trust Funds

Amounts received as tender deposits and retention amounts controlled by Council are included in the amount disclosed as "Creditors" within
current liabilities until they are refunded or forfeited.

Assets

Maior Classes of Assets

The Major classes of assets are:

Land

Buildings

Land Improvements

Furniture and Fittings

Plant and Equipment

Bridges

Water Assets

Sewerage Assets

Drainage Assets

Roads
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONT

ii) Acquisition of Assets
The cost method of accounting is used for the initial recording of all acquisition of assets. Cost is determined as the fair value of the
assets given as consideration plus costs incidental to the acquisition including architectural fees and engineering design fees and all
other costs incurred in getting the assets ready for use.

Non-monetary assets received in the form of grants and donations are recognised as assets and revenues at their fair value at the
date of receipt.

iii) Non-Current Assets constructed bv Council
The cost of non-current assets constructed by the Council includes the cost of all materials used in construction, direct labour on the
project and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overheads.

Such assets are recognised as "Work in Progress" until they become available for service.

Other Non-Current Assets

Council has continued to apply the cash basis for other Non-Current Assets such as Receivables, Deferred Expenses, Land Held for
Resale, Furniture and Fittings and Plant and Equipment.

Iv) Caoitalisation of Expenditure
Expenditure is capitalised where the life of the future benefit can be accurately estimated and where the expenditure is above the
following limits;

$ $

Land 0 Bridges 1,000

Buildings 1,000 Water Assets 2,000

Land Improvements 1,000 Sewerage Assets 2,000

Furniture and Fittings 500 Drainage Assets 2,000

Plant and Equipment 500 Roads 5,000

v) Depreciation of Non-Current Assets
All duly recognised non-current assets having a limited useful life are systematically depreciated over their useful lives in a manner
which reflects the consumption of the service potential in those assets. Land is not a depreciable asset.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUCIES CONT

Depreciation is recognised on a straight-line basis, using rates which are reviewed each reporting period.

Main depreciation periods are:

Buildings 10 to 100 years
Plant 5 to 10 years
Motor Vehicles 2 years
Office Equipment & Furniture 3 to 5 years
Water Systems 20 to 60 years
Sewerage Systems 15 to 75 years
Stormwater/Drainage Systems 50 to 80 years
Roads 10 to 150 years
Bridges & Culverts 20 to 65 years

(vi) Impairment of Assets
At each reporting date, the Council reviews the carrying value of its assets to determine whether there is any indication that these
assets have been impaired. If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher of the assets fair
value less costs to sell and value in use, is compared to the assets carrying value. Any excess of the assets carrying value over its
recoverable amount is expensed to the Comprehensive Income Statement.

vii) Land held for resale
Land held for resale is valued at the lower of the carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

viii) Revaluation of Propertv Plant & Eouipment
Council has adopted the fair value valuation basis for all classes of property, plant and equipment, except for Land Improvement,
Furniture and Fittings and Plant and Equipment, which are reported on the cost basis. For asset classes at fair value. Council
undertakes formal revaluations with sufficient regularity or applies an applicable index to ensure the carrying value does not
materially differ from fair value at balance date.

ix) Land Under Roads
Council has elected not to recognise land under roads prior to 1 July 2008 as an asset in accordance with AASB 1051 Land under
Roads. Council has accounted for land under roads subsequent to 1 July 2008 in accordance with AASB116 Property, Plant and
Equipment.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONT

(e) Employee Entitlements

i) Wages & Salaries:
The amount of wages and salaries earned but not paid at balance date is recognised and brought to account as an accrual at
current rates of pay.

ii) Annual Leave:
The amount of annual leave which is owing to employees at balance date is recognised and brought to account as a current liability
at rates of pay expected to be paid as at the reporting date. On-costs (superannuation, payroll tax and workers compensation) have
been recognised as part of these provisions. Amounts expected to be settled beyond twelve months have not been inflated and
discounted to their present value in accordance with AASB119 "Employee Benefits" as the impact has been assessed as immaterial.

ill) Long Service Leave:
The liability for long service leave entitlements, which are not expected to be settled within 12 months of balance date, are accrued
as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to balance date.
Consideration is given, when assessing future payments, to expected future wage and salary levels, experience of employee
departures and periods of sen/ice. Expected future payments are discounted using the appropriate indicative mid-rates on selected
Commonwealth Government Securities. On-costs (superannuation, payroll tax and workers compensation) have been included in
these provisions.

iv) Superannuation:
The superannuation expense for the reporting period is the amount of the statutory contribution the Council makes to the
superannuation plans which provides benefits to its employees. Details of those arrangements are set out in Note 26.

v) Personal Leave:
No amount is shown for non-vested personal leave as experience indicates that, on average, personal leave taken for each
reporting period is less than the entitlement accruing in that period, and this experience is expected to recur in future reporting
periods.

(f) Provision for Gravel Pit Rehabilitation

Provision has been made for Gravel Pit rehabilitation and restoration on an incremental basis during the course of the life of the Pit (Refer to
Note 20).
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONT

(g) Rates. Grants. Donations and Other Contributions

Rates, grants, donations and other contributions are recognised as revenues when the Council obtains control over the assets comprising
the contributions. Control over assets acquired from rates is obtained at the commencement of the rating period or, where earlier, upon
receipt of the rates. Control over granted assets is normally obtained upon their receipt or upon prior notification that a grant has been
secured.

Dividend revenue is recognised when Council's right to receive payment is established.

Where contributions recognised as revenues during the reporting period were obtained on the condition that they be expended in a particular
manner, or used over a particular period, and those conditions were discharged as at the reporting date, the nature of and amounts
pertaining to those undischarged conditions are disclosed in Note 8. That note also discloses the amount of contributions, if any, recognised
as revenues in a previous reporting period which were obtained in respect of the Council's operations for the current reporting period.

(h) Investments

Investments in Associates

The Council's investment in associates is accounted for using the equity method as the Council has the ability to influence rather than
control the operations of the entities. The investment is initially recorded at the cost of acquisition and adjusted thereafter for post-acquisition
changes in the Council's share of the net assets of the entities. The Council's share of the financial result of the entities is recognised in the
Comprehensive Income Statement.

investments in water corporation

Investments in water corporations are valued at fair value at balance date. Fair value was determined by using it's ownership percentage
against the water corporations' net asset value at balance date. Any unrealised gains and loses on holdings at balance date are recognised
in the Comprehensive Income Statement.

(!) Joint Ventures

Council had no interest in joint ventures at the reporting date.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONT

(j) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits at call with financial institutions, other short term, highly liquid investments with
maturities not greater than three months that are readily convertible to cash which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.
Gash equivalents are held for the purpose of meeting short term cash commitments rather than for investment or other purposes.

Cash and short term deposits are carried at face value of the amounts deposited. The carrying amounts of cash and short term deposits
approximate net fair value. Interest revenue is accrued at the market or contracted rates and is receivable on maturity.

(k) Receivables

Settlement Terms

Debtors of Council are required to settle their accounts within specified terms including:
I. Rate Debtors

Either by 2 equal instalments or alternatively within 30 days of demand which provides a discount of 10%. The discount provided is
shown as an expense of the Council in its Comprehensive Income Statement. Should amounts remain unpaid outside of the adopted
payment options. Council will instigate collection proceedings in accordance with provisions of the Local Government Act 1993 (as
amended).

II. Sundrv Debtors

Within 30 days of issue of the account. Should amounts remain unpaid beyond 30 days Council instigates collection proceedings in
accordance with provisions of the Local Government Act 1993 (as amended).

(1) Pavables

Liabilities are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for goods or services received, whether or not billed by the creditor. Trade
accounts payable are normally settled within 30 days.

(m) Financial Liabilities

Financial Liabilities loans are carried on the Balance Sheet at their principal amount. Interest expense is accrued at the contracted rate and
included in "Creditors".

(n) inventories

Inventories represent materials and store items intended for use by the Council. They are stated at the lower of cost and current
replacement value. Costs have been assigned to inventory quantities on hand at balance date on the basis of average cost.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONT

(o) Comparative Information

Where necessary comparative figures have been amended to conform with changes in presentation in the current year.

(p) Significant Business Activities

Under section 84(2)(da) of the Local Government Act 1993, Council is required to report operating, capital and competitive neutrality costs in
respect of each significant business activity undertaken by it.

Council has determined, based upon materiality, that Transport Infrastructure, Sewage Disposal, Water Reticulation, Drainage and Parks
and Recreation Facilities as defined in Note 2(c) are considered Council's significant business activities.

Water and Sewerage Assets and Liabilities were transferred to Cradle Mountain Water on 1 July 2009.

(q) Goods & Services Tax

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), except where the amount of GST
incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Tax Office (ATO). In these circumstances the GST is recognised as part of the cost of
acquisition of the asset or as part of an item of the expense.

Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included.

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included as a current asset or liability in the Balance Sheet.

Cash flows are included in the Cash Flow Statement on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing and
financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO are classified as operating cash flows.

(r) Budget

The estimated revenue and expense amounts in the Comprehensive Income Statement represent amended budget figures and are not
subject to audit.

(s) intangible Assets

Council recognises intangible assets at cost in accordance with AASB138 and amortises them systematically over their useful lives in a
manor which reflects the consumption of the service potential in those assets.
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2. FUNCTIONS / ACTIVITIES OF COUNCIL

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Report

For the year ended 30 June 2010

Note 2 (a): Expenses, Revenues and Assets have been attributed to the following functions/activities, descriptions of which are set out in note 2(c).

2010 ACTUAL CORPORATE

SERVICES

TRANSPORT DEVELOPMENT

SERVICES

PARKS AND

RECREATION

COMM

SERVICES

FIRE LEVY WASTE MOT WATER

SERVICES

SEWERAGE

SERVICES

DRAINAGE

SERVICES

OTHER—NOT

ATTRIBUTABLE

TOTAL

EXPENSES $ i251,103 4,242,099 613,498 2,190,966 2,481,117 294,445 1,217,483 0 0 411,910 501,412 14,204,033

% 15.8 29.9 4.3 15.4 17.5 2.1 8.6 0.0 0.0 29 100.0

REVENUES $

GRANTS 0 1,713,147 0 517,982 369,128 0 0 0 0 0 1,613,840 4,214,097

OTHER 1,177,500 5,133 200,023 130,740 993,463 335,343 809,914 0 0 424,911 5,982,812 10,059,839

TOTAL 1,177,500 1,718,280 200,023 648,722 1,362,591 335,343 809,914 0 0 424,911 7,596,652 14,273,936

% 8.2 12.0 1.4 4.5 9.5 23 5.7 0.0 0.0 3.0 53.2 100.0

SURPLUS/

(DEFICIT) FOR
YEAR

69,903

ASSETS (Note 2(b)) 41,959,632 41,950,945 774 27,150,711 2,941,640 0 270,605 0 0 12,153,331 0 126,427,638

2010 BUDGET CORPORATE

SERVICES

TRANSPORT DEVELOPMENT

SERVICES

PARKS AND

RECREATION

COMM

SERVICES

FIRE LEVY WASTE MGT WATER

SERVICES

SEWERAGE

SERVICES

DRAINAGE

SERVICES

OTHER-NOT

AHRIBUTABLE

TOTAL

EXPENSES $ 2,187,990 3,949,115 657,221 1,802,585 1,959,194 322,117 1,282,364 0 0 388,084 498,719 13,047,389

% 16.8 30.3 5.0 13.8 15.0 25 9.8 0.0 0.0 3.0 3.8 100.0

REVENUES $

GRANTS 0 1,494,000 0 20,000 340,728 0 0 0 0 0 1,590,000 3,444,728

OTHER 822,316 0 172,000 68,993 1,015,490 333,962 794,287 0 0 384,644 5,881,000 9,472,692

TOTAL 822,316 1,494,000 172,000 88,993 1,356,218 333,962 794,287 0 0 384,644 7,471,000 12,917,420

% 6.4 11.6 1.3 0.7 10.5 26 6.1 0.0 0.0 3.0 57.8 100.0

SURPLUS/

(DEFICIT) FOR
YEAR

(129,969)
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2. FUNCTIONS / ACTIVITIES OF COUNCIL CONT

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Report

For the year ended 30 June 2010

Note 2 (a): Expenses, Revenues and Assets have been attributed to the foilovving functions/activities, descriptions of which are set out in note 2(C).

-

2009 ACTUAL CORPORATE

SERVICES

TRANSPORT DEVELOPMENT

SERVICES

PARKS AND

RECREATION

COMM

SERVICES

FIRE LEVY WASTE MGT WATER

SERVICES

SEWERAGE

SERVICES

DRAINAGE

SERVICES

OTHER-NOT

ATTRIBUTABLE

TOTAL

EXPENSES i 1,981,098 6,330,812 586,021 1,594,353 1,954,772 291,106 1,017,981 2,287,695 2,127,887 379,988 489,052 19,040,765

% 10.4 33.2 3.1 8.4 10.3 1.5 5.3 12.0 11.2 ZO ZB 100.0

REVENUES $

GRANTS 111,366 1,858,887 20,000 469,000 155,423 0 0 0 0 0 1,996,948 4,611,624

OTHER 1,122,771 460,941 194,935 110,668 1,035,522 315,584 691,951 2,198,086 1,809,976 349,025 5,692,743 13,982,202

TOTAL 1,234,137 2,319,828 214,935 579,668 1,190,945 315,584 691,951 2,198,086 1,809,976 349,025 7,689,691 18,593,826

% 6.6 12.5 1.2 3.1 6.4 1.7 3.7 11.8 9.7 1.9 41.4 100.0

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT)

FOR YEAR

(446,939)

ASSETS (Note 2(b)) 14,652,255 41,728,896 774 27,247,115 2,909,574 0 272,643 20,456,277 17,223,871 12,273,134 0 136,764,539
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FUNCTIONS I ACTIVITIES OF COUNCIL CONT

2(b) Total assets shown in Note 2(a) are reconciled with the amounts shown for assets in the statement of financial position as follows;-

Actual Actual

2010 2009

$  $

Current Assets 6,901,383 6,962,579

Non-Current Assets 119,526,255 129,801,960

126,427,638 136,764,539

2(c) Component Functions/Activities

The activities relating to the Local Government's components reported at 2(a) are as follows:-

Transport
Construction and maintenance of roads, footpaths, bridges and traffic signs. It also covers gravel pits and municipal car parks.

Development Services
Administration of various by-laws, animal control, health and building regulation and town planning and development services.

Parks & Recreation

Operation and maintenance of halls, recreation centres and various reserves.

Community Services
Operation of various children and youth services, state emergency services, public conveniences and cemeteries.

Waste Management
Operation of Wynyard Waste Transfer Station and rubbish collection services.

Water Services

Construction and maintenance of Council's Water Works.

Sewerage Services
Construction and maintenance of Council's Sewerage Works
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FUNCTIONS / ACTIVITIES OF COUNCIL CONT

Drainage Services
Construction and maintenance of Council's Drainage Works.

Corporate Services
Operation and maintenance of Council Chambers, administration offices and depots. Items previously classified as Business Undertakings -
operation of self-funded activities including the Waratah Post Office, rental of Council owned property at commercial rates and subdivision
and sale of Council land - have been reclassified as Corporate Service activities.

Fire Levy
Collected on behalf of the State Government for statewide fire services.

Other - Not Attributable

This grouping recognises revenue and expenditure items which do not fall into any of the above functions/activities.
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Actual Actual

2010 2009

$  $

3. EMPLOYEE COSTS

Wages, Salaries and Allowances 3,690,570 3,597,307

Workers Compensation 97,482 48,568

Superannuation Expenses 416,162 404,612

Annual, Sick and Long Service Leave 702,109 534,801

Other Employee Expenses 187,232 233,362

Total Direct Employee Costs 5,093,555 4,818,650

Less Amounts Capitalised 451,456 525,277

Net Employee Costs 4,642,099 4,293,373

4. DEPRECIATION

Depreciation and Amortisation

Land Improvements 242,330 163,378

Buildings 422,082 414,296

Furniture and Fittings 44,813 46,595

Plant and Equipment 289,255 303,463

Roads 1,405,584 1,367,697

Bridges 174,222 173,337

Water, Sewerage and Drainage Works 258,272 1,093,694

Intangible Assets 28,860 25,484

2,865,418 3,587,944
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Actual

2010

$

Actual

2009

$

LOSS (PROFIT) ON DISPOSAL OF NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Disposal of assets in the ordinary course of business have given rise to the following losses

Carrying Amount of Assets Disposed

Gross Proceeds from Assets Disposed

BORROWING COSTS

Interest

OTHER EXPENSES

Audit Services

Community Assistance Grants

Councillor's Emoluments

GRANTS

Grants were received in respect of the following:

Roads

State Government Road Grants

State Govemment Bridge Funding

Heavy Vehicle Funding

Black Spot Funding

Roads to Recovery

965,868

523,596

442,272

27,570

27,570

26,860

34,737

167,255

218,852

1,094,650

200,605

42,451

25,000

395,440

1,758,146

1,031,555

466,564

564,991

193,197

193,197

21,711

96,386

142,037

260,134

1,032,715

345,607

42,451

60,878

377,236

1,858,887
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8. GRANTS cont

Regulatory Services

Strategic Land Capacity Opportunities

GRANTS GRANTS

Actual

2010

$

GRANTS

Actual

2009

$

20,000

Community Services

Children Services

Tourism

Walking Tracks

Wharf Precinct

Other

Water, Sewerage and Drainage

Sisters Beach Sewerage/Drainage Scheme Development

Water and Sewer Reforms

Grants to Council as a Whole

Tax Sharing Grants

Total Grants Revenues

64,873

238,482

0

330,000

208,756

842,111

0

0

0

1,613,840

4,214,097

46,021

5,000

339,000

0

192,600

582,621

44,302

108,866

153,168

1,996,948

4,611,624
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Actual

2010

$

Actual

2009

$

Government funds received in relation to pensioner rates of $427,266 (2009:$555,322) were treated as rate revenue in the Comprehensive Income
Statement.

Grants recognised as revenue during the reporting period which were obtained on the condition that they be applied in a specified manner but had yet to be
totally expended in that manner as at the report date were $533,064 (2009;$468,402).

$702,114 in Financial Assistance Grants (2008/09 $678,030) were received in advance in the 2009/10 financial year.

Capital Grants

Operating Grants

Total Grants Revenues

1,366,987

2,847,110

4,214,097

951,415

3,660,209

4,611,624

9. CURRENT ASSETS - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash

Trading Account

Road Accident - Trust Account

Wynyard Tulip Festival - Trust Account

Short Term Deposits

10. CURRENT ASSETS - RECEIVABLES

Rates and Charges

Other Debtors

Council had $184,415 in rates received in advance for 2009/10 (2008/09 $163,612).
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2,720

1,133,719

4,487

32,251

4,650,000

5,823,177

82,352

270,624

352,976

3,020

1,547,297

4,622

31,514

4,000,000

5,586,453

60,882

364,482

425,364



Actual Actual

2010 2009

$  $

11. CURRENT ASSETS-INVENTORIES

Stores and Material 131,790 214,017

Post Office Stock 4,018 5,242

Wonders of Wynyard 17,368 13,902

153,176 233,161

12. CURRENT ASSETS - OTHER

Accrued Income 69,570 221,897

Prepayments 84,984 78,204

Security Deposits 5,000 5,000

159,554 305,101

13. NON CURRENT ASSETS - PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Land

At Fair Value 17,355,450 18,342,500

Work In Progress 0 22,899

17,355,450 18,365,399

The Council valuation was carried out by Eskproperty, as at 30 June 2008 - based on current market value.

Land Improvements

At Cost 5,113,913 4,572,717

Less Accumulated Depreciation (1,758,813) (1,516,483)

Work in Progress 168,641 317,071

3,523,741 3,373,305
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Actual Actual

2010 2009

$  $

Buildings

At Fair Value 28,113,683 28,160,837

Less Accumulated Depreciation (12,464,576) (12,240,878)

Work in Progress 54,751 7,260

15,703,858 15,927,219

The Council valuation was carried out by Eskproperty, as at 30 June 2008 - based on current replacement cost.

Furniture and Fittings

At Cost 1,149,377 1,101,316

Less Accumulated Depreciation (944,520) (900,615)

204,857 200,701

Plant and Equipment

At Cost 4,146,547 4,167,555

Less Accumulated Depreciation (1,790,501) (1,729,353)

2,356,046 2,438,202

Roads

At Fair Value 64,111,799 63,278,943

Less Accumulated Depreciation (30,425,684) (29,602,323)

Work in progress 211,465 3,694

33,897,580 33,680,314

The Council valuation was carried out by Council's Engineer, Mathew Greskie, as at 1 July 2008 - based on current replacement cost
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Actual Actual

2010 2009

$  $

Bridges

AtFairValue 12,030,117 11,944,987

Less Accumulated Depreciation (5,072,142) (4,955,894)

6,957,975 6,989,093

The Council valuation was based on las Span data contained in the Total Bridge Management report, as at 1 July 2007 - based on current
replacement cost.

Water Assets

AtFairValue 0 17,809,351

Less Accumulated Depreciation 0 (7,823,548)

Work in progress 0 0

0  9,985,803

The Council valuation was carried out by Council's Engineer, as at 1 July 2007 - based on current replacement cost

Sewerage Assets

AtFairValue 0 31,033,750

Less Accumulated Depreciation 0 (15,652,655)

Work in progress 0 752,190

0  16,133,285

The Council valuation was carried out by Council's Engineer, as at 1 July 2007 - based on current replacement cost.

Drainage Assets

AtFairValue 20,748,417 20,654,003

Less Accumulated Depreciation (8,621,683) (8,380,869)

Work in progress 26,597 0

12,153,331 12,273,134

The Council valuation was carried out by Council's Engineer, as at 1 July 2007 - based on current replacement cost.

TOTAL PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 92,152,838 119,366,455
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Actual

2010

$

Actual

2009

$

Reconciliations:

Land

Carrying amount at beginning of year

Additions

Asset Recognition

Transfer from capital works in progress

Transfer to Cradle Mountain Water

Disposals

Transfer from Land Held for Resale

Carrying amount at end of year

18,365,399

80,000

65,000

(22,899)

(647,050)

(485,000)

0

17,355,450

18,274,500

90,899

0

0

0

(332,500)

332,500

18,365,399

Land Improvements

Carrying amount at beginning of year

Additions

Transfer from capital works in progress

Depreciation

Carrying amount at end of year

3,373,305

541,196

(148,430)

(242,330)

3,523,741

2,249,293

1,332,519

(45,129)

(163,378)

3,373,305
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Buildings

Carrying amount at beginning of year

Additions

Transfer from capital works in progress

Transfer to Cradle Mountain Water

Disposals

Depreciation

Prior Year Revaluation Adjustment

Carrying amount at end of year

Actual

2010

$

15,927,219

408,337

0

(182,019)

(27,597)

(422,082)

0

15,703,858

Actual

2009

$

15,420,018

1,183,886

(46,167)

0

(174,561)

(414,296)

(41,661)

15,927,219

Furniture and Fittings

Carrying amount at beginning of year

Additions

Depreciation

Carrying amount at end of year

200,701

48,969

(44,813)

204,857

186,874

60,422

(46,595)

200,701

Plant and Equipment

Carrying amount at beginning of year

Additions

Transfer to Cradle Mountain Water

Disposals

Depreciation

Carrying amount at end of year

2,438,202

479,105

(73,817)

(198,189)

(289,255)

2,356,046

2,414,188

535,181

0

(207,704)

(303,463)

2,438,202
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Roads

Carrying amount at beginning of year

Additions

Transfer from Capital Works in progress

Disposals

De-recognition of Driveways *

Depreciation

Revaluation

Carrying amount at end of year

Actual

2010

$

33,680,314

1,849,968

0

(227,116)

0

(1,405,584)

0

33,897,580

Actual

2009

$

30,794,407

2,086,168

(196,794)

(262,047)

(1,766,345)

(1,367,697)

4,392,622

33,680,314

From 1 July 2008 Council has revised its position in relation to driveways no longer considering them to be the responsibility of Council.

Bridges

Carrying amount at beginning of year

Additions

Disposals

Depreciation

Asset Recognitions

Revaluation

Prior Year Adjustment

Carrying amount at end of year

6,989,093

156,338

(13,234)

(174,222)

0

0

0

6,957,975

7,017,586

147,690

(23,363)

(173,337)

0

0

20,517

6,989,093
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Water

Carrying amount at beginning of year

Additions

Transfer from Capital Works in progress

Transfer to Cradle Mountain Water

Depreciation

Prior Year Adjustment

Carrying amount at end of year

Actual

2010

$

9,985,803

0

0

(9,985,803)

0

0

0

Actual

2009

$

10,150,647

150,747

(78,337)

0

(237,783)

529

9,985,803

Sewerage

Carrying amount at beginning of year

Additions

Transfer from Capital Works in progress

Transfer to Cradle Mountain Water

Disposals

Depreciation

Carrying amount at end of year

16,133,285

0

0

(16,133,285)

0

0

0

15,734,254

1,280,708

(279,263)

0

(2,953)

(599,461)

16,133,285

Drainage

Carrying amount at beginning of year

Additions

Disposals

Depreciation

Carrying amount at end of year

12,273,134

153,201

(14,732)

(258,272)

12,153,331

12,310,889

247,122

(28,427)

(256,450)

12,273,134
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14. NON CURRENT ASSETS - INTANGIBLES

At Cost

Less Accumulated Amortisation

Intangibles

Carrying amount at beginning of year

Additions

Amortisation

Carrying amount at end of year end of year

Actual

2010

$

158,168

(109,395)

48,773

72,738

4,895

(28,860)

48,773

Actual

2009

$

153,273

(80,535)

72,738

79,949

0

(25,484)

72,738

15. NON CURRENT ASSETS-RECEIVABLES

Debtors - Long Term 39,932 73,809

16. CURRENT LIABILITIES - PAYABLES

Trade Creditors

Accrued Expenses

Prepaid Income

Trust Deposits

817,912

260

505

253,655

1,072,332

1,164,951

3,568

13,110

363,902

1,545,531

17. CURRENT LIABILITIES - FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Secured Bank Loans 205,668 569,020
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18. CURRENT LIABILITIES - PROVISIONS

Provisions for Annual Leave

Provision for Long Service Leave

Employee benefits - On-costs

Provision for Banked Employee Time

Actual

2010

$

493,907

420,242

81,795

23,203

1,019,147

Actual

2009

$

425,886

402,396

67,515

15,765

911,562

19. NON CURRENT LIABILITIES - FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Secured Bank Loans

Security for Borrowings
The bank loans are secured over the general rates of the Council.

Financing Arrangements
Unrestricted access was available at the reporting date to the following lines of credit:

195,210 2,950,188

Available at reporting date - Bank Overdraft 250,000 250,000

20. NON CURRENT LIABILITIES - PROVISIONS

Provision for Long Service Leave

Employee benefits - on-costs

Provision for Gravel Pit Rehabilitation

210,975

19,199

202,232

432,406

68,223

5,628

181,063

254,914
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Actual

2010

$

Actual

2009

$

Movement in Provision for Gravel Pit Rehabilitation

Opening balance

Contributions received

181,063

21,169

202,232

152,349

28,734

181,063

The present values of employee entitlements not expected to be settled within twelve months of balance date have been calculated using the
following weighted averages:

Assumed rate of increase in wage and salary rates

Discount rate

Settlement term (years)

Number of employees at year end

3.50%

4.45%

10

70

3.00%

3.50%

10

82

21. RESERVES

Composition:

Asset Acquisition

Road Resealing

Water Reserve

Public Open Space

Asset Revaluation - Council

Asset Revaluation - Associate

212,499

0

0

21,062

19,279,420

0

19,512,981

212,499

0

0

21,062

36,476,639

8,570,780

45,280,980

Waratah-Wynyard Council Financial Report 2010



Movements;

Asset Acquisition

Balance at the beginning of the financial year

Amount transferred from accumulated surplus

Amount transferred to accumulated surplus

Balance at the end of the financial year

Actual

2010

$

212,499

0

0

212,499

Actual

2009

$

653,925

211,869

(653,295)

212,499

Road Sealing

Balance at the beginning of the financial year

Amount transferred to accumulated surplus

Balance at the end of the financial year

0

0

0

556,459

(556,459)

0

Water

Balance at the beginning of the financial year

Amount transferred to accumulated surplus

Balance at the end of the financial year

0

0

0

149,942

(149,942)

0

Public Open Space

Balance at the beginning of the financial year

Amount transferred from accumulated surplus

Amount transferred to accumulated surplus

Balance at the end of the financial year

21,062

0

0

21,062

21,062

0

0

21,062
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1
Actual

2010

$

Actual

2009

$

Asset Revaluation - Council

Balance at the beginning of the financial year

Revaluation Assets

Amount transferred to accumulated surplus

Amount transferred to Cradle Mountain Water

Balance at the end of the financial year

36,476,639

0

(17,197,219)

0

19,279,420

32,104,632

4,372,007

0

0

36,476,639

Asset Revaluation - Associate

Balance at the beginning of the financial year

Amount transferred to Cradle Mountain Water

Balance at the end of the financial year

8,570,780

(8,570,780)

0

8,570,780

0

8,570,780

Nature and Purpose of Reserves:

Asset Acquisition Reserve

The amount standing to the credit of the Asset Acquisition Reserve resulted from prior period allocation of accumulated surplus for the purpose of
identifying the surplus set aside for specific works to be conducted in future years. The reserve will be released to accumulated surplus when the
specific works are undertaken. The balance in this account at 30 June 2010 represents amounts to be spent on specific works to be undertaken in
the Sisters Beach community.

Road Sealing Reserve

This reserve is no longer considered appropriate. The credit balance at 1 July 2008 has been released to accumulated surplus.

Water Reserve

This reserve is no longer considered appropriate. The credit balance at 1 July 2008 has been released to accumulated surplus.

Public Open Space Reserve

The amount standing to the credit of the Public Open Space Reserve resulted from prior period allocation of accumulated surplus for the purpose of
identifying the surplus set aside for specific works to be conducted in future years. The reserve will be released to accumulated surplus when the
specific works are undertaken.

Asset Revaluation Reserves

This amount standing to the credit of the Asset Revaluation Reserve resulted from periodic revaluation of Assets.
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22. RECONCILIATION OF SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR YEAR TO NET CASH
INFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Surplus/(Deficlt) for Year

Actual

2010

$

69,903

Actual

2009

$

(446,939)

Items not involving Cash

Depreciation expense

Recognition of assets/Donated assets

Change in Operating Assets and Liabilities

Receivables and other Assets

Payables

Provisions

Inventories

investing Activity

Loss/(Profit) on disposal of Non-Current Assets

Asset De-recognition

2,865,418

(65,000)

2,800,418

312,607

(533,994)

357,278

79,985

215,876

442,272

0

442,272

3,587,944

(212,635)

3,375,309

(139,378)

(314,984)

171,206

43,224

(239,932)

564,991

1,766,345

2,331,336

Cash flows from Operating Activities 3,528,469 5,019,774
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Actual Actual

2010 2009

$  $

23. CONTINGENCY

Council holds bank guarantees for the following:

Building, frontage, landscaping/subdivision 14,907 126,470

These guarantees have not been recognised as assets as it is uncertain, and unlikely, that Council will require these funds.

The Council is presently involved in several confidential legal matters, which are being conducted through Council's solicitors.

As these matters are yet to be finalised, and the financial outcomes are unable to be reliably estimated, no allowance for these contingencies has
been made in the financial report.

24. COMMITMENTS FOR EXPENDITURE

(a) Capital Commitments

Not later than one year 995,083 0

(b) Finance Lease Commitments

Council held no finance lease commitments as at 30 June 2010.

(c) Operating Lease Commitments

Commitments under non-cancellable operating leases at the reporting date are payable as follows:-

Not later than one year 59,033 67,999

Later than one year and not later than five years 39,563 74,129

Council leases equipment under non-cancellable operating leases. Leases generally provide Council with a right of renewal. Lease payments
do not include any contingent rentals.

(d) Other Commitments

Not later than one year 166,524 0
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25. SUPERANNUATION

The Waratah Wynyard Council makes superannuation contributions for a number of its employees to the Quadrant Defined Benefits Fund, which is a
sub fund of the Quadrant Superannuation Scheme. The Quadrant Defined Benefits Fund has been classified as a multi-employer sponsored plan.
As the Fund's assets and liabilities are pooled and are not allocated by employer, the Actuary is unable to allocate benefit liabilities, assets and costs
between employers. As provided under paragraph 32(b) of AASB 119, Council does not use defined benefit accounting for these contributions.

At the present time Council contributes 9.0% of employees' gross income to the Fund. Assets accumulate in the fund to meet member benefits as
they accrue, and if assets within the fund are insufficient to satisfy benefits payable, the Council is required to meet its share of the deficiency.

Bendzulla Actuarial Pty Ltd undertook the last actuarial review of the Fund at 30 June 2008. The review disclosed that at that time the net market
value of assets available for funding member benefits was $84,786,241, the value of vested benefits was $77,075,401, the surplus was $7,707,840,
and the value of total accrued benefits was $81,398,000. These amounts relate to all members of the fund at the date of valuation and no asset or
liability is recorded in the Quadrant Superannuation Scheme's financial statements for Council employees.

The financial assumptions used to calculate the Accrued Benefits for the Fund were:

Net Investment Return -17.0% p.a. for 2008/09 and 7.0% p.a. thereafter
Salary Inflation 4.0% pa
Price Inflation n/a

In the opinion of the Actuary, the Quadrant Defined Benefit Fund was adequately funded in that assets were sufficient to cover the vested benefits of
all members at the review date and the actuarial value of accrued past service benefits.

At 30 June 2009, the net market value of assets available for funding member benefits had fallen to $58,450,000 largely due to the poor investment
returns that were experienced during the 2009 financial year. The value of vested benefits at that date was $64,350,000 resulting in a shortfall of
$5,900,000.

When the Fund's assets are below the vested benefits, superannuation law defines this as an "unsatisfactory financial position". As a result of the
Fund moving into an unsatisfactory financial position, the Quadrant Trustee prepared a plan to restore the financial position within a reasonable time
frame. This plan noted the improved investment returns since 30 June 2009 and confirmed that the 9.0% contribution rate remained appropriate.

The next full triennial review will be undertaken after 31 October 2011 for 30 June 2011.

Council also contributes to other accumulation schemes on behalf of a number of employees, however the Council has no ongoing responsibility to
make good any deficiencies that may occur in those schemes.
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25. SUPERANNUATION CONT

During the year Council made the required superannuation contributions for all eligible employees to an appropriate complying superannuation fund
as required by the Superannuation Guarantee (Administration) Act 1992.

The amount of contributions paid to Quadrant during the reporting period was $329,985 ($321,785 in 2009).

Council also contributes to a number of other superannuation funds for its employees. None of these funds has a defined benefits superannuation
pian and therefore Council is not responsible for any deficiencies that may occur. Council contributions paid to 12 other funds was $86,177 ($95,010
in 2009).

Actual Actual

2010 2009

$  $

26. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE

a) Allowances 157,254 142,037

b) Register of Interests -

Interests of Councillors notified to the General Manager in respect of any body or organisation with which the Council has significant financial
dealings;

Kevin Hyland (Mayor) No Interest Declared

Robert Walsh (Deputy Mayor) No Interest Declared

Gary Bramich No Interest Declared

Alwyn Friedersdorff No Interest Declared

Clayton Hawkins No Interest Declared

Darren Fairbrother No Interest Declared

Colleen Dibley No Interest Declared

Vaughan Pendlebury No Interest Declared

Alfred (Francis) Ransley No Interest Declared

Mary Duniam No Interest Declared
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Actual Actual

2010 2009

$ $

27. SPECIAL COMMITTEE OF COUNCIL

Bloomin' Tulips

Balance at the beginning of the financial year 31,513 14,536

Receipts 53,938 42,629

Payments (53,201) (25,652)

Balance at the end of the financial year 32,250 31,513

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial instruments Note Accounting policy Terms and conditions

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents Gash on hand, at bank and in cash management The weighted average interest rate return on
accounts are valued at face value. operating accounts at 30"^ June 2010 was 3.39%

Interest is recognised as it accrues. Investments The weighted average interest rate return on

Receivables

are held to maximise interest returns of surplus
cash.

10 An impairment loss is not recognised on rates
receivable.

A provision for doubtful debts is recognised on
other debtors when there is objective evidence
that an impairment loss has occurred.

Gollectability of overdue accounts is assessed
on an ongoing basis.

term deposit investments at 30"^ June 2010 was
5.85% (4.08% in 2008/2009).

Unpaid rates represent a charge against the
rateable property that will be recovered when the
property is next sold.

General debtors are unsecured and arrears do

not attract interest.
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Financial instruments Note Accounting policy Terms and conditions

Financial liabilities

Trade and other payables 16 Liabilities are recognised for amounts to be paid

in the future for goods and services provided to

Council as at balance date whether or not in

voices have been received.

General Creditors are unsecured, not subject to

interest charges and are normally settled within
30 days of invoice receipt.

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 17 Loans are carried at their principal amounts,

which represent the present value of future cash

flows associated with servicing the debt.

Interest is accrued over the period it becomes

due and recognised as part of payables.

Borrowings are secured by way of mortgages
over the general rates of the Council.

The weighted average interest rate on borrow

ings is 5.40% (5.89% in 2008/2009).

Bank Overdraft Overdrafts are recognised at the principal

amount. Interest is charged as an expense as it
accrues.

The overdraft is subject to annual review. It is

secured by a mortgage over Council's general
rates. The interest rate at balance date was

10.39%

(a) Financial Risk Management Risk Exposures

Risk Management policies and processes

The Council has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments;

Credit Risk

Liquidity Risk
Market Risk

The General Manager has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of Council's risk management framework. Risk management policies are

established to identify and analyse risks that Council may be exposed to, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to

limits. Council has continued to develop its risk management framework within the organisation and has embedded risk management across the organisation

as a whole.
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Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Council if a customer or counter-party to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises

principally from trade and other receivables, cash and investments.

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements, net of any allowances for impairment losses, represents the Council's maximum
exposure to credit risk without taking account of any collateral or other security. Reference should be made to Notes 9 and 10 for the carrying amounts of the
Council's financial assets at reporting date.

Councii's policy in relation to receivables is summarised below.

Debtors of the Council are required to settle their accounts within specified terms (as detailed in Note 1 (k)).

Impairment Losses

The following table provides an ageing of the Council's trade and rate receivables (excluding non current receivables) at the reporting date:

Trade Receivables

30 June 2010

Gross Impairment

30 June 2009

Gross Impairment

Not past due 218,364 0 306,100 0

Past due 0-30 days 16,208 0 13,722 0

Past due 31-60 days 3,862 0 5,285 0

Past due 61-90 days 16,477 0 5,038 0

More than 90 days 15,713 0 34,337 0

Total trade receivables 270,624 0 364,482 0

Rates receivable 82,352 0 60,882 0

Total receivables $352,976 $0 $425,364 $0
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A provision for impairment loss is recognised when there is objective evidence that an individual receivable is impaired. No allowance for impairment in
respect of trade receivables has been recognised at 30 June 2010.

All rates receivable are in excess of 90 days. No allowance for impairment loss is recognised as unpaid rates represent a charge against the rateable
property that will be recovered when the property is next sold.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Council will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fail due. Council manages this risk by cash forecasting to
maintain adequate liquidity levels and cash holdings. Council also has an unused overdraft facility.

The debenture loans of Council are secured by trust deed and the total loan borrowings are limited to borrowings approved by Treasury. In accordance with

section 80 of the Local Govemment Act 1993 (as amended) the borrowing capacity of the Council is limited as follows:

•  Except with the approval of the Minister, a council may not borrow additional money for any purpose if the annual payments required to service the

total borrowings would exceed 30% of its revenue of the preceding financial year; and

•  Grants made to a council for specific purposes are to be excluded in calculating 30% of the revenue of the council.

The current annual payments of loans by Council equate to 3.25% of the revenue of the preceding financial year (2009 - 5.12%).

Maturity anaiysis for financial liabiiities

The following tables detail the undiscounted cash flows payable by the Council by remaining contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. It should be noted
that as these are undiscounted and include estimated interest payments, totals may not reconcile to the carrying amounts presented in the Balance Sheet:

Less than 1 year 1-5 years More than 5 years Total contractual cash

flows

Carrying amount

30 June 2010

Payables

Financial liabilities

1,072,332

222,532

0

192,515

0

11,250

1,072,332

426,297

1,072,332

400,878

Total $1,294,864 $192,515 $11,250 $1,489,629 $1,473,210

30 June 2009

Payables

Financial liabilities

1,545,531

3,147,809

0

415,047

0

11,250

1,545,531

3,574,106

1,545,531

3,519,208

Total $4,693,340 $415,047 $11,250 $5,119,637 $5,064,739
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The Council has not defaulted on or breached the conditions of any loans payable recognised at balance date.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices, such as foreign

exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk within acceptable

parameters, while optimising the return to the Council.

The primary market risk that the Council is exposed to is interest rate risk.

Cash and cash equivalents are subject to floating interest rates. Any variations in future cash flows from interest rate movements are expected to have an

immaterial effect on the Council's revenue.

Council obtains loans with competitive fixed interest rates or rates subject to review at specified dates to manage its exposure to interest rate risk.

The exposure of interest rate risk and the effective interest rates of financial assets and financial liabilities, both recognised and unrecognised, at balance

date are as follows:

2010 Floating interest

rate
One year or iess

Fixed interest maturing in:

Over 1 to 5 years More than 5 years Non-interest bearing Total

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade and other receivables

Accrued revenue

Investment In water corporation

1,170,457 4,650,000

10,710 20,931 6,000

2,720

355,267

69,570

27,284,712

5,823,177

392,908

69,570

27,284,712

Total financial assets 1,170,457 4,660,710 20,931 6,000 27,712,269 33,570,367

Weighted average interest rate 3.39% 5.83% 7.02% 8.0%

Financiai iiabilities

Trade and other payables

Trust funds and deposits

interest-bearing loans and bor

rowings

-

205,668 195,210 0

757,882

253,655

757,882

253,655

400,878

Total financial liabilities -
205,668 195,210 0 1,011,537 1,412,415

Weighted average interest rate 5.34% 5.47%

Net financial assets (liabilities) 1,170,457 4,455,042 (174,279) 6,000 26,700,732 32,157,952
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2009 Floating Interest Fixed Interest maturing in:

rate
One year or less Over 1 to 5 years More than 5 years Non-Interest bearing Total

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 1,583,433 4,000,000
- -

3,020 5,586,453

Trade and other receivables - 10,710 34,975 8,000 445,488 499,173

Accrued revenue
- - - -

221,897 221,897

Investment in water corporation
- - - - 10,288,958 10,288,958

Total financial assets 1,583,433 4,010,710 34,975 8,000 10,959,363 16,596,481

Weighted average interest rate 2.69% 4.09% 6.91% 8.00%

Financial liabilities

Trade and other payables - - - - 1,181,629 1,181,629

Tmst funds and deposits - - - - 363,902 363,902

Interest-bearing loans and bor - 563,620 1,806,774 1,105,164 43,650 3,519,208

rowings

Total financial liabilities
-

563,620 1,806,774 1,105,164 1,589,181 5,064,739

Weighted average Interest rate 5.94% 5.96% 5.76%

Net financial assets (liabilities) 1,583,433 3,447,090 (1,771,799) (1,097,164) 9,370,182 11,531,742

Interest rate risk on deposits is managed by adopting practices that ensures:

•  Conformity with State and Federal regulations and standards,

•  Adequate safety,

•  Appropriate iiquidity
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At the reporting date the Council had the following mix of financial assets and liabilities exposed to variable interest rate risk:

30 June 2010 30 June 2009

Financial assets

Cash at bank and on hand 1,173,177 1,586,453

Short term investments 4,650,000 4,000,000

Total 5,823,177 5,586,453

Financial liabilities

Interest bearing liabilities 0 0

Total 0 0

Net Total $5,823,177 $5,586,453

Sensitivity Anaiysis of Council's Exposure to Possible Changes in Interest Rates

The following sensitivity analysis is based on the interest rate risk exposures in existence at the reporting date. The analysis assumes all other variables re
main constant and was performed on the same basis for 2009.

At 30 June 2010, if interest rates had moved, as illustrated in the table below, profit and equity would have been affected as follows:

Surplus/(Deficit)

2009/10 2008/09 2009/10

Equity

2008/09

+ 1% (100 basis points)

- 0.5% (50 basis points)

$58,232

$(29,116)

$55,865

$(27,932)

$58,232

$(29,116)

$55,865

$(27,932)

The movements in surplus/(deficit) are due to higher/lower interest costs from variable rate debt and cash balances.

(b) Net Fair Values and Categories of Financial Assets and Liabilities

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques. These include reference to quoted

market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments and discounted cash flow analysis.
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The nominal value less estimated credit adjustments of trade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their fair values. The fair value of finan

cial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that is available to the

Council for similar financial instruments.

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities, together with the carrying amounts shown in the Balance Sheet, are as follows;

30 June 2010 30 June 2009

Fair Values Carrying amount Fair Value Carrying amount Fair Value

$ $ $ $

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank and on hand 1,173,177 1,173,177 1,586,453 1,586,453

Short term investments 4,650,000 4,650,000 4,000,000 4,000,000

Receivables 352,976 352,976 425,364 425,364

Investment in Water Corporation 27,284,712 27,284,712 0 0

Accrued revenue 69,570 69,570 221,897 221,897

33,530,435 33,530,435 6,233,714 6,233,714

30 June 2010 30 June 2009

Fair Values Carrying amount Fair Value Carrying amount Fair Value

$ $ $ $

Financial liabilities

Payables 1,072,332 1,072,332 1,545,531 1,545,531

Interest bearing liabilities 400,878 400,878 3,519,208 3,519,208

Other liabilities 0 0 0 0

1,1,473,210 1,473,210 5,064,739 5,064,739

Net financial assets 32,057,225 32,057,225
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Carrying amounts classified as: 30 June 2010 30 June 2009

Financial assets

Loans and receivables 361,751 647,261

Cash and cash equivalents 5,823,177 5,586,453

Available for Sale Financial Assets 27,287,712 0

33,469,640 6,233,714

Financial iiabiiities

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 1,412,415 5,064,739

1,412,415 5,064,739

Net financial assets / (liabilities) 32,057,225 $1,168,975

(b) Fair vaiue hierarchy

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value by valuation method.

The different levels have been defined as follows:

•  Level 1 - quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

•  Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included within level one that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)

•  Level 3 - inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
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30 June 2010 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Available for sale financial assets

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 in the period.

27,284,712 27,284,712

Reconciliation of Level 3 Fair Value Movements

2010

Opening balance

Investment on transfer of net assets

Gains (losses) recognised in other comprehensive income:

Change in fair value of investment in Cradle Mountain Water

34,385,064

(7,100,352)

Closing balance 27,284,712
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Actual Actual

2010 2009

$  $

29. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES

Waratah Wynyard Council's ownership interest in Cradle Coast Water was transferred to Cradle Mountain Water from 1 July 2009.

Carrying amount of investment at start of year 10,288,958 10,606,165

Distributions received by Council 0 (317,207)

Investment transferred to Water Corporation (10,288,958) 0

Carrying amount of Investment at end of year 0 10,288,958

30. INVESTMENT IN WATER CORPORATION

In February of 2008 State and Local Government reached agreement to establish three Local Government owned, vertically integrated businesses providing
bulk, distribution and retail water and sewerage services, and a common service provider subsidiary company. The Water and Sewerage Corporations Act
2008 (Corporations Act) was subsequently enacted and received Royal Assent on 13 June 2008.

Full transfer of water and sewerage assets, liabilities and staff to the new corporations took place on 1 July 2009. From that date, responsibility for the
provision of water and sewerage services moved from local councils to the three new regional water and sewerage corporations (trading as Cradle Mountain
Water, Ben Lomond Water and Southern Water). A fourth company provides common services and support to the three regional corporations (trading as
Onstream).

Council will in future derive returns from the three new corporations, mainly in the form of dividends.
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The following assets and liabilities relating to water and sewerage were transferred to Cradle Mountain Water from 1 July 2009. Council's opening ownership

interest in the new corporation will be represented by the net assets transferred.

$

Inventories 17,242

Land 647,050

Buildings 182,019

Water infrastructure 9,985,803

Sewerage infrastructure 16,133,285

Plant and equipment 73,817

Less Leave Provisions (72,201)

Less Loans (2,870,909)

Investment in Cradle Coast Water 10,288,958

Net assets transferred 34,385,064

Council's ownership interest (based on the 2009 Draft Treasurer's Returns Allocation Order) in Cradle Mountain Water as at 30 June 2010 was 12.14%. At

the time of preparation of this report the Treasurer was yet to finalise the Order. Council does not have significant influence to allow K to use the equity

method to account for this interest.

Council has classified this asset as an Available-for-Sale financial asset as defined in AAB 139 Financial Instruments; Recognition and Measurement and

has followed AASB 132 Financial Instruments: Presentation and AASB 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures to value and present the asset in the financial

statements.

There is no active market for the investment and so it is valued at Council's share of total equity as at each balance date. Changes in the fair value are

recognised as revenue or expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Income each year. Council's investment is disclosed on the face of the Statement of

Financial Position with the value being determined as disclosed above. Dividends received from Cradle Mountain Water are brought to account as income

as received.

Council's share of the Corporation's net assets at 30 June 2010 is $39,432,848.

2010

$

Net assets transferred from 1 July 2009 34,385,064

Change in fair value of investment (7,100,352)

Total investment in water corporation 27,284,712
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31. SIGNIFICANT BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

2010 Drainage Transport Parks and Recreation

Facilities

REVENUE

Direct

Rates 421,418 0 0

User Charges 3,493 4,488 104,741

Contributions 0 645 24,880

Government Grants 0 1,713,147 517,982

Other 0 0 1,120

424,911 1,718,281 648,722

EXPENDITURE

Direct

Employee Costs 30,885 491,418 396,479

Materials & Contracts 42,724 1,177,289 874,361

Interest 0 16,496 3,836

Other 49,603 240,350 0

123,212 1,925,553 1,274,676

Indirect

Indirect Expenditure 30,426 719,858 440,209

Capital Costs

Depreciation 258,272 1,596,688 476,081

Opportunity Costs of Capital 1,093,800 3,775,585 2,443,564

1,352,072 5,372,273 2,919,645

Competitive Neutrality Costs 3,906 2,458 74,476
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2009 Water Reticulation Sewage Disposal Drainage Transport Parks and Recreation

Facilities

REVENUE

Direct

Rates 1,513,320 1,590,968 346,025 0 0

User Charges 670,362 157,882 3,000 426,472 54,377

Contributions 14,404 61,126 0 2,675 54,778

Government Grants 0 0 0 1,858,886 469,000

Indirect Rate Revenue 0 0 0 0 0

Other 0 0 0 31,795 1,513

2,198,086 1,809,976 349,025 2,319,828 579,668

EXPENDITURE

Direct

Employee Costs 74,679 186,678 14,557 291,618 395,991

Materials & Contracts 1,450,915 789,380 31,021 1,844,232 570,023

Interest 1,417 142,366 86 30,767 5,147

Other 119,425 124,103 55,818 2,051,755 0

1,646,436 1,242,527 101,482 4,218,372 971,161

Indirect

Indirect Expenditure 402,936 278,781 22,056 554,429 232,785

Capital Costs

Depreciation 238,323 606,579 256,450 1,558,011 390,407

Opportunity Costs of Capital 1,869,106 1,546,653 1,104,582 3,755,600 2,452,240

2,107,429 2,153,232 1,361,032 5,313,611 2,842,647

Competitive Neutrality Costs 63,229 13,227 17 3,553 77,724
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STATEMENT OF THE GENERAL MANAGER

In my opinion;

(a) the financial report set out on pages 1 to 39 presents fairly the financial position of the Waratah-Wynyard Council as
at 30 June 2010 and the results of its operations and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Australian Accounting Standards, including Australian Interpretations, and

(b) the financial report has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government Act 1993 (as
amended).

Greg Winton
General Manager

Date: 28 September 2010
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To th« CoundHan Waratah-Wynyarit CouikII

Flnandal Report for tH« r«ar eitletl 30 Juno 20t0

Report on tiio Financial Report

] hove audited the oeearrpanying financial report or Wafatah-Wynyard
Council (Council), which conWtses the statement of Knancial posRIon as
at 30 }i»ie 2010, the statemertt of comprehensive Income, statement of
changes in equity end stntentcnt of cash flows for the year ended on that
date, a summary of stgnlffcanc aooauntlng poMcies, other expionatDiY
notes aind th« Generai Kana^rs statemerrt.

The Resiponeiltiirtty of (he Ceuwrai Mmivgior for the financial Report

Tt>e Generd Manager Is responsible fb* Che preparation Md bir
presentation of the ftnartdal report In accordance with Australian
Aecountltig Standards flncludSng Australian Accounting TnterpretatiOnB)
and Secban S4 of the Lace) Government Ac( 1993. This respOnS'A^lty
Includes estaboshing and maaitalnlng internal controec relevant to the
preparation ana rair presentsTion or the financial report that is fhee (inom
material misitatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and
applying appn^H-ipte accountlrtg policies; and making acoounttng
estimates that are reasonaUe in tfie cimimstances.

RoOitorTf RespoosWiiUty

My respansfblllty is to express ait oplnkin on Bie fkianrSal statemoits
based upon my audit. My audit was conductod In accordance w«th
Australian Auditing StandanM. These Auditing Standards require tftat I
comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to
whether the rinanciai report is free of matertai misstatement.

An audit hnvofves porfomiing procedures to obtain audit evxIerKa atioiit
the amouiRs artd disclosures In ttie flnandal report. The procedures
Sleeted depoid on the audicar's judgement, including tl>e asseament of
risks of matenat mtsstabemerit oif the financlat report, whether due to
fraud or error. In ntakinfi those risk assessments, the amPtor considers
htteraal ccmtroi relevaiK to CounoTs preperatlon and fair presentation of
the financial scatomei^ bi order to design oud^ praCBdures that are
appropriate to the c^'cumstances, iMt not for the purpose of axprassfng an
opinion on the effedfiveness of Council's •ntemai cor^rqt. An audit a(M)
lfM:ludes evalussaig the appropriateness of accoufdiog poNcies used and
tfve fvasonablerioss of accourdsng estimates made by the General

fSanager, as well as enialuatrng the overai prKMntaHlon of the ffnanclia
stattementa.

1 believe that the audit sfvtdefioa 1 haw otkslnad is wfRolent and
appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.

My audit ts not daPgnsd to provide asswance on the »oc»racy and
^raprlateness of the budget information iii CourKll's financial report,

IndspanctonM

In conducxbig ttils audit, I have complied with the independence
raguuements of Australlwi Auditing Standards artd other relevaiA ethtcaf
nemdremaits. The Aut/it Act 2<?09 fhriher promote Independence by:

»  providing that on»y P^lnmeBit^ and not the executive government,
can remove an Audltor^Generai, and

•  mandating the Audiear-Generai as auditor of State Entities but
precluding ttw proviskin of non-audit scavicxis, thus ensuring the
Auifitor-Geinerat and the Tasmanian Au(K Office are not

CxKnpromlsed in their role by the possibility of losing dients or
mcome-

AutMor's Opinion

In my opinion the hi^nclal report of Waratah-Wynyard Council:

(a) preserits faldy, in all m^rial rr^pects, the financial posltton of
Council as at 3G June 2010, and Its financial perfonnance, eash
flows and changes In equity Far the year then ended; and

(b) K m accwtfance with the locaf Govemmeoc Act iP9J and
AuSb'aKan Accotandng Standards (including Australian
Accounting tnterprotatfOns).

TASMANIAN AIAXT OmCS

E R De Santi
OEPtrr* AUOrrOR-GENERAL

HOBART

)T October 2016


